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ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS       
For the Year Ended on 31st March:     

(Amount In Lakhs) 

Particulars  2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

PROFIT & 
APPROPRIATIONS                    
Sale & Other Income 1821.13 1942.86 1712.83 1529.11 1774.00 1894.50 2328.85 1559.25 1157.00 1528.71 

Profit Before 
Depreciation & Tax 108.64 102.74 92.90 85.04 126.27 91.22 110.87 75.12 46.42 64.65 
Depreciation 100.78 90.50 76.52 66.59 105.71 86.19 90.82 71.89 68.61 61.98 
Profit before Tax 7.86 12.24 16.38 18.45 20.56 5.03 20.05 3.23 -22.19 2.67 
Taxation 2.94 3.46 5.02 5.69 10.33 -6.19 14.63 1.11 -2.92 -2.43 
Profit After Tax 4.92 8.78 11.36 12.76 10.23 11.22 41.11 2.12 -19.27 4.21 
Dividend 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Earning per Share 0.16 0.28 0.37 0.41 0.33 0.36 1.33 0.07 -0.63 0.14 

ASSETS 
EMPLOYED                    
Fixed Assets Gross 1058.29 1021.56 1022.78 1059.81 1293.23 1324.61 1325.49 1422.79 1319.22 1318.70 
Depreciation 484.13 553.17 630.57 697.17 802.88 889.06 979.88 1051.77 977.69 1025.87 
Net 574.16 468.39 392.21 362.64 490.35 435.55 345.61 371.02 341.53 292.83 

Capital work in 
progress 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Investment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Net Current Assets 125.91 124.26 149.14 142.80 99.41 102.60 98.84 59.39 90.94 142.35 

Other Non Current 
Assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 26.76 39.42 33.52 59.52 34.99 30.52 

Miscellaneous 
Expenditure 2.78 1.85 0.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

  702.85 594.50 542.28 505.44 616.52 577.57 477.97 489.93 467.46 465.70 
FINANCED BY                    
Equity Shares 308.13 308.13 308.13 308.13 308.13 308.13 308.13 308.13 308.13 308.13 
Reserve & Surplus 47.56 56.34 66.81 79.57 89.80 101.03 142.14 144.26 124.99 129.20 
Loan Funds 318.90 205.07 146.67 100.68 195.12 154.30 21.14 32.39 32.11 28.37 
Deferred Tax 
Liability 28.26 24.96 20.67 17.06 23.47 14.11 6.56 5.15 2.23 0.00 

  702.85 594.50 542.28 505.44 616.52 577.57 477.97 489.93 467.46 465.70 
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VINAYAK POLYCON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED) 
(CIN: L25209RJ2009PLC030620) 

Registered Office: 312, Navjeevan Complex, 29, Station Road, Jaipur-302006 
Email: investor@vinayakpolycon.com, Website: www.vinayakpolycon.com 

Phone: 0141-2377007 
 
 

NOTICE 
 
NOTICE is hereby given that the 13th Annual General Meeting of the members of Vinayak Polycon 
International Limited will be held on Friday, 16th September, 2022 at 12:00 P.M. through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 
1. To adopt the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 
2022 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 
 
2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Vikram Baid (DIN 00217347), who is liable to retire by 
rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 
   
Date: 09.08.2022 
Place: Jaipur 
 

 

Registered Office: 312, Navjeevan Complex, 29, 
Station Road, Jaipur-302006 (Rajasthan) 
Tel: 0141-2377007 
investor@vinayakpolycon.com 
www.vinayakpolycon.com 

          By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Vinayak Polycon International Limited 

 
 
 
 

VIKRAM BAID 
WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR 

& CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
DIN: 00217347 

 
NOTES: 
 

1. In accordance with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, (“MCA”) General Circulars Nos. 14/2020 dated 
April 8, 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, 02/2021 dated January 13, 
2021, 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021 and 2/2022 dated May 5, 2022, (“the MCA Circulars”) read 
with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 
dated January 15, 2021 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/ CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022 (the SEBI 
Circulars”), have permitted companies to conduct Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”) or other audio visual means (“OAVM”), subject to compliance of various 
conditions mentioned therein. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars 
and the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 13th AGM of the Company is being 
convened and conducted through VC. 
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2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the 

Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be 
a Member of the Company. Since this Meeting will be held through VC/OAVM, in accordance with 
the MCA Circulars, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the 
facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the Meeting and hence 
the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. 
 

3. As per the provisions under the MCA Circulars, Members attending the 13th AGM through VC shall 
be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum. 

 
4. Since the AGM will be held through VC/ OAVM, the route map of the venue of the Meeting is not 

annexed hereto. 
 

5. Members of the Company under the category of Institutional Investors are encouraged to attend and 
vote at the AGM through VC/OAVM. Corporate members and other non-individual members 
intending to attend the AGM through authorized representatives are requested to send a certified copy 
of the Board resolution / authorization letter to the Scrutinizer by email through its registered email 
address to cs.vmanda@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 
 

6. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 10th  
September, 2022 to 16th September, 2022 (both days inclusive).  

 
7. Members are requested to:  

 
(a) Notify the change in address if any, with Pin Code numbers immediately to the RTA (in case of 
shares held in physical mode).  
(b) Quote their Regd. Folio Number/DP and Client ID Nos. in all their correspondence with the 
Company or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. 

 
8.  Non-resident Indian shareholders are requested to inform about the following immediately to the 

Company or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent or the concerned Depository Participant(s), as the 
case may be:  
a) the change in the residential status on return to India for permanent settlement, and  
b) the particulars of the NRE account with a Bank in India, if not furnished earlier. 
 

9. The Securities and Exchange Board of India has mandated the submission of the Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in electronic 
form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their depository participant(s). Members holding 
shares in physical form are required to submit their PAN details to the Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent. 
 

10. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate immediately to the Registrar & 
Share Transfer Agent of the Company, MAS Services Limited, T-34, 2nd Floor, Okhla Industrial 
Area, Phase-II, New Delhi - 110 020 Ph: 011-26387281/82/83 quoting registered Folio No. (a) details 
of their bank account/change in bank account, if any, and (b) change in their address, if any, with pin 
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code number.  In case shares are in demat form members are requested to update their bank detail 
with their depository participant. 

 
11. Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022 has mandated the listed 
companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only while processing service requests viz. issue 
of duplicate share certificate; claim from unclaimed suspense account; renewal/exchange of share 
certificate; endorsement; sub-division/splitting of share certificate; consolidation of share 
certificates/folios; transmission and transposition. In view of the same and to eliminate all risks 
associated with physical shares and avail various benefits of dematerialisation, Members are advised 
to dematerialise the shares held by them in physical form. Members can contact the Company or MAS 
Services Limited, Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company, for assistance in this regard. 
Accordingly, Members are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled and signed 
Form ISR–4, the format of which is available on the Company’s website at 
www.vinayakpolycon.com It may be noted that any service request can be processed only after the 
Folio is KYC Compliant 

 
12. Members holding shares in electronic form are required to contact their Depository Participants to 

register/ change their nomination. Members holding shares in Physical form are advised to register 
Nomination in respect of their Shareholding in the Company by submitting Form SH–13. If a Member 
desires to opt out or cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, he/she may submit 
the same in Form ISR-3 or SH-14 as the case may be. The said forms can be downloaded from the 
Company’s website www.vinayakpolycon.com. 

 
13. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to intimate change, if any, in their bank 

details to their Depository Participants with whom they have Demat accounts. The Company or 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent cannot act on any request received directly from such Members. 
Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate change, if any, in their bank details 
by sending duly signed Form ISR-1 alongwith required documents to the Company/Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent. 

 
 

14. Members who hold shares in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the same order of 
names are requested to send the share certificates to the Registrar, for consolidation into a single folio.   

 
15. CS Manoj Maheshwari, FCS 3355, Practicing Company Secretary, and Partner of M/s V. M. & 

Associates, Company Secretaries, Jaipur has been appointed as a scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote 
e-voting and e-voting during AGM to be carried out in a fair and transparent manner. 

 
16. In line with the MCA and SEBI Circulars, the notice of the 13th  AGM along with the Annual Report 

2021-22 are being sent only by electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are 
registered with the Company/Depositories. Members may please note that this Notice and Annual 
Report 2021-22 will also be available on the Company’s website at 
https://www.vinayakpolycon.com, websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at 
www.bseindia.com. 

 



[6] 
 

17. The details of Directors retiring by rotation, pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, as amended from time to time (“the SEBI Listing Regulations”) and the Secretarial Standards 
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, is annexed as Annexure I and forms part of 
this Notice. 

 
18. Process and manner for members opting for voting through electronic means:  

 
The remote e-voting period begins on Monday, September, 12th , 2022 at 9:00 A.M. and ends 
on Thursday, September, 15th, 2022 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be 
disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the 
Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Friday 09, 
September, 2022, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall 
be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on 
the cut-off date, being Friday, September 09, 2022. 

 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 
below: 
 
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

 
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode 
 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts 
in order to access e-Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 
 

Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholder
s holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL. 

1. If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit 
the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com/either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is 
launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” 
which is available under “IDeAS” section. A new screen will 
open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After 
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. 
Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you 
will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on options available 
against company name or e-Voting service provider – NSDL and 
you will be re-directed to NSDL e-Voting website for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting 
& voting during the meeting. 
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2. If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register 
is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online 
for IDeAS”Portal or click 
athttps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing 
the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a 
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will 
open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen 
digitdemat account number held with NSDL), Password/OTP 
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on options available 
against company name or e-Voting service provider - NSDL and 
you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDLfor casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting.  

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login 
through their user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest 
arehttps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/loginor 
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to 
see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote. 

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at   
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistrati
on  

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the 
user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in 
the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be 
provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-
Voting is in progress. 
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Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their 
depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility.  Once login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once 
you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-
Voting feature. Click on options available against company name or e-
Voting service provider-NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 
 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  
and  1800 22 44 30  

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 
23058738 or 022-23058542-43  

 
 

 
B) Login Method for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. 
 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your 
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices 
after using your log-in credentials, click on  e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your 
vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 
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a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 
and Client ID is 12****** then your user 
ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio 
Number registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** 
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given 

below:  
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 

password to login and cast your vote. 
 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to 
retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you 
retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and 
the system will force you to change your password. 
 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the 

company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your 
email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. 
Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf 
file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for 
NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your 
‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  
 

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned 
below in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not 
registered 

 
6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have 

forgotten your password: 
 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your 

demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can 

send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account 
number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address 
etc. 

 



[10] 
 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting 
the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by 

selecting on the check box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which 

you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you 
need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the 
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 
“Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 
confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 
General Guidelines for shareholders 
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with 
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, 
to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to bskashtwal@gmail.com  with a copy marked to 
evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, 
you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset 
Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  
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3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section 
of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  or send a 
request to Amit Vishal at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set 
out in this notice: 
 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of 
PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 
investor@masserv.com or investor@vinayakpolycon.com. 
 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID 
or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, 
PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) to investor@masserv.com or investor@vinayakpolycon.com. If you are an 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the 
login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e.Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual 
meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

 
3.    Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.infor 

procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 
 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their 
demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS 
UNDER:- 
 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 
above for remote e-voting. 
 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM 
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are 
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the 
AGM. 
 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote again at the AGM. 
 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility 
for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH 
VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
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1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the 

NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for 
Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM 
link” placed under “Join General meeting” menu against company name. You are requested 
to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for 
VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company 
will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password 
for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following 
the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 
 

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 
avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

 
4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
 

5. Members, who would like to express their views/have questions are requested to send 
registrations along with the questions in advance mentioning their name, demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at investor@vinayakpolycon.com from 
Friday, September 02, 2022 to Friday, September 09, 2022. Those Members who have 
registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions 
during the Meeting. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of 
questions/speakers depending on the availability of time for the Meeting. 

 
General Instructions 

 
i. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial 

owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail 
the facility of remote e-voting. 

 
ii. Shri Manoj Maheshwari, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS-3355), has 

been appointed as the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of the Company to 
scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.  

 
iii. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting 

is to be held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, for all those members who are 
present VC / OAVM at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-
voting facility. 
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iv. The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of voting at the Meeting, first count the votes cast 
at the Meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and shall 
submit,  not later than two-working days of the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting, 
a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the 
Chairman or any other person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same 
and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 
 

v. The Results declared alongwith the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website 
of the Company www.vinayakpolycon.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after 
the declaration of result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing and 
communicated to the BSE Limited. 

 
 

Annexure 1: 
 

Re-appointment of Mr. Vikram Baid (Item No. 2)  

Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, 
following information is furnished about Mr. Vikram Baid, Director who is proposed to be re-
appointed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting: 

 

Name of the Director Mr. Vikram Baid 

Age 46 Years 

Date of First Appointment on Board 31.12.2009 

Designation Whole Time Director as Executive Director 

Qualification(s) MBF, B. Com (Hons.), ACA 

Brief Resume He is promoter & Director of the Company since 
inception. He is a Bachelor of Commerce (Hons.), 
Master of Business Finance (MBF) and a member of 
pioneer institution i.e. Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI).  

Expertise in specific functional area. He is also an expert in Financial and Tax related 
matters. 

Experience He has more than 20 years’ experience in various plastic 
moulding techniques and mould making. 

Terms and conditions of Appointment 
/Reappointment: 

Whole-Time Director liable to retire by rotation 

Other Directorships as on August, 09 
2022 

Jai Sinter Polycon Private limited 

Chairmanship / Membership of 
Committees in companies in which 
position of Director is held as on 
August,09, 2022 

None 

Listed entities from which resigned in 
the past three years 

None 
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Relationship with other Directors, 
Managers and other Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company 

He is son of Mr. Bharat Kumar Baid, Managing 
Director and husband of Mrs. Samta Baid, Non-
Executive Director of the company 

No. of Equity Shares held in the 
Company as on August 09,2022 

288046 

No. of Board Meetings attended during 
the year 

5 of 5 in the Financial Year 2021-22  

Details of Remuneration last drawn 
(F.Y. 2021-22) 

Rs. 23,40,000/- during the Financial Year 2021-22 

Details of Remuneration Proposed Not Applicable 

 
 

Date: 09.08.2022 
Place: Jaipur 
 

 

Registered Office: 312, Navjeevan Complex, 29, 
Station Road, Jaipur-302006 (Rajasthan) 
Tel: 0141-2377007 
 
investor@vinayakpolycon.com 
www.vinayakpolycon.com 

          By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Vinayak Polycon International Limited 

 
 
 
 

VIKRAM BAID 
WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR 

& CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
DIN: 00217347 
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BOARD’S REPORT 

 
To, 
The Members, 
Vinayak Polycon International Limited 
 

Your Directors have pleasure to present their Thirteenth (13th) Annual Report on the business 

and operations of the Company along with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial 

year ended on 31st March, 2022 and Auditor’s Report thereon. 
 

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY / HIGHLIGHTS 

The financial performance of the company for the year ended on 31st March, 2022 is 

summarized below: 

                                                                                                                                                                  (Amount in Lakhs) 
Particulars Year ended 

31.03.2022 
Year ended 
31.03.2021 

Sales 
              Domestic 
              Export 

 
1526.60 

 
1154.42 

       0.00 0.00 

Other Revenue 2.11 2.58 
Total Revenue 1528.71 1157.00 
Total Expenses 1526.04 1179.19 
Profit Before Interest, Depreciation & Tax                        90.12       68.76    
Less: Financial Cost 25.47 22.34 
Profit Before depreciation & Tax  64.65 46.42 
Less: Depreciation                         61.98  68.61 
Profit/(loss) Before exceptional item    2.67 -22.19 
Exceptional item - - 
Profit after Exceptional item but Before Tax 2.67 -22.19 
Less: Tax Liability (including deferred tax) -1.54 -2.92 
Profit After Tax 4.21 -19.27 

 

2. OPERATIONAL REVIEW 
 

                  
Financial information is presented in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-
AS). Our reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR). 

                 
The Financial Year 2021-22 was one of the significant year in terms of growth and 
sustainability. Though the company has gone through economic slowdown, the projects and 
jobs undertaken, outperformed the targets envisaged in the beginning of the financial year and 
your Company had been able to achieve Profit after Tax during the reported financial year. 
The Company continued its focus on growing its business faster than market while protecting 
product quality & profitability. Further information on the Business overview and outlook is 
discussed in detail in the Management Discussion & Analysis Report. 
 
Briefly, during the year under report, Financial Profit  before depreciation and taxation was 
Rs 64.65/- Lakhs against Rs. 46.42/- Lakhs in the previous year. After providing for 
depreciation and taxation company earned net profit in this year of  Rs. 4.21/- Lakhs against 
the loss of Rs. 19.27 Lakhs last year. During the financial year increase in the Profit After Tax 
(PAT) is due to implementation of effective cost and savings plans. 
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3. DIVIDEND 
 

The Board  of Directors does not recommend any  dividend for the year ended on 31st March, 
2022. 
 

4. RESERVES 
 

The Board has not proposed transfer of any amount to General Reserve. Profit of the Company 
during the year i.e. Rs. 4.21 Lakhs is transferred to the Profit & Loss A/C for the Financial 
Year 2021-22, in compliance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

5. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
 

Company’s net worth is below Rs. 500 Crore, Turnover is less than Rs.1000 Crore and Net 
profit (Before Tax) is less than Rs. 5 Crore, hence provisions of section 135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, are 
not applicable on the Company. 
 

6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE 

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED 

BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT 
 

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company, which have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the Financial 
Statements relate and date of this report. There were no material changes in the nature of 
business of the Company during the year under review.  

 
7. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 

COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND 

COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE 
 

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and Company's operations in future. 

 
 

8. FIXED DEPOSITS 
 
During the Financial Year 2021-22, your Company has not invited, accepted or renewed 
any deposits from the public within the meaning of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
together with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.  
 

9. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

A. Statutory Auditors 
 
At the 10th Annual General Meeting held on 26th September 2019, M/s Tambi Ashok & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants, Jaipur (FRN: 005301C) were appointed as Statutory 
Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period of 5 years till the conclusion of the 
fifteenth Annual General Meeting. 
 
As required under the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Company has obtained a written certificate from the above-mentioned Auditors to the 
effect that they conform with the limits specified in the said Section and that they are not 
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disqualified from continuing as Auditors within the meaning of Section 141 of the said 
Act. 
 
There is no reservation, qualification or adverse remark contained in the Statutory Auditors' 
Report attached to Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022. 
Information referred in Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and don't call for any further 
comments. 
 

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS 
 

There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the Statutory 
Auditors to report to the Audit Committee and/or Board under Section 143(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder. 

 
B. Secretarial Auditor 

 

As per the provisions of Section 204 of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, every listed 
company is required to annex with its Board’s Report, a Secretarial Audit Report given 
by a Company Secretary in practice. The Board had appointed M/s V.M. & Associates, 
Company Secretaries, Jaipur (FRN: P1984RJ039200) as “Secretarial Auditor” to conduct 
Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2021-22. 
 

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2021-22 in Form MR-3 is attached 
herewith as Annexure 1. There is no reservation, qualification or adverse remark contained 
in the Secretarial Auditor Report. Information referred in Secretarial Auditor Report are self-
explanatory and do not call for any further comments. 
 

The Company has received consent and certificate of eligibility from M/s V. M. & Associates, 
Company Secretaries, Jaipur for the financial year 2022-23 to act as Secretarial Auditors. The 
Board in their meeting held on 09th August, 2022 has re-appointed M/s V. M. & Associates, 
Company Secretaries, Jaipur (FRN: P1984RJ039200) as Secretarial Auditor of the Company 
to carry out secretarial audit for the financial year 2022-23.  
 

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS 
 

There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the Secretarial 
Auditors to report to the Audit Committee and/or Board under Section 143(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder. 
 

C. Internal Auditor 
 
Mr. Praveen Maharwal, was appointed as Internal Auditor of the Company for conducting 
Internal Audit for financial year 2021-22.  
 
The Company has received consent letter from Mr. Praveen Maharwal, for the financial year 
2022-23 to act as Internal Auditor.  The Board of Directors has approved the re-appointment 
of Mr. Praveen Maharwal, as Internal Auditor at their meeting held on 09th August, 2022 for 
conducting the Internal Audit of the Company for financial year 2022-23. 
 

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS 
 

There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the Internal 
Auditor to report to the Audit Committee and/or Board under Section 143(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder. 
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10. CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

 

During the Financial Year 2021-22 there was no change in capital structure of the Company 
and paid up share capital of the Company stands at Rs. 3,08,12,950/- (Rupees three crore eight 
lakhs twelve thousand nine hundred and fifty only). 
  

11. ANNUAL RETURN 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Act, read with Companies (Management & 
Administration) Rules, 2014, the annual return in the prescribed form is available on the 
website of the Company http://www.vinayakpolycon.com/reports 
 

12. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
 

The information related to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign 
Exchange Earning and Outgo as required under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is included in the Report 
as Annexure 2. 

 

13. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 

A. Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
 

Your Company’s Board is duly constituted and is in compliance with the requirements of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) and provisions of the Articles of Association of the 
Company. Your Board has been constituted with requisite diversity, wisdom and experience 
commensurate to the scale of operations of your Company.  
 
During the year under review, the following changes occurred in the Board of Directors and 
Key Managerial Personnel: 
 
 Board of Directors 
 

• Mrs. Samta Baid (DIN: 08104727), Non-Executive Director of the Company who 
retired and being eligible, was reappointed at the 12th AGM of the Company. 
 

• Mr. Vikram Baid was re- appointed as Whole Time Director designated as Executive 
Director for a period of  3 (Three) years commencing from April 01, 2022 at the 12th 
AGM of the Company. 
 

• Mr. Bharat Kumar Baid was re- appointed as Managing Director for a period of 3 
(Three) years commencing from April 01, 2022 at the 12th AGM of the Company. 

 
• Further In accordance with the provisions of the Section 152 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Vikram Baid, Whole Time 
Director designated as Executive Director of the Company is liable to retire by rotation 
at the 13th   Annual General Meeting (AGM) and being eligible, has offered himself 
for re-appointment. The Board of Directors on the recommendation of Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee has recommended his re-appointment in the ensuing 
AGM. 
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 Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

 

Ms. Rashmi Agarwal, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company has 
resigned with effect from April  10, 2021. 
 
Ms. Shikha Natani was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the 
Company with effect from June 30, 2021. 
 
Necessary resolutions for the appointment/ reappointment of aforesaid Director, wherever 
applicable, have been incorporated in the notice convening the ensuing AGM. As required 
under the listing regulations and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings issued by ICSI, 
the relevant details of Directors retiring by rotation at the ensuing AGM are furnished in the 
notice of AGM 
 
B. Declaration by Independent Directors 
 

The Company has received the declarations from all Independent Directors of the Company 
viz., Mrs. Anima Bordia, Mr. Niraj Narendrakumar Nahata and Mr. Pawan Brijendrasingh 
Nahata as required under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 stating that they meet 
the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations.  All the Independent Directors have 
complied with the Code for Independent Directors prescribed in Schedule IV to the Act. 
Further, it is confirmed that in the opinion of the board, the independent directors fulfill the 
conditions specified in Listing Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013 and are independent 
of the management. The terms & conditions for the appointment of Independent Directors are 
available on the website of the Company, http://www.vinayakpolycon.com/node/29. The 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Notification Number G.S.R.804(E) dated 22nd 
October 2019 effective from 1st December, 2019 has introduced a provision relating to 
inclusion of names of Independent Directors in the Data Bank maintained by Indian Institute 
of Corporate Affairs (IICA). All Independent Directors of the Company are registered with 
IICA. 
 
C. Formal Annual Evaluation 
 

In terms of the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations an annual 
performance evaluation of the Board is undertaken where the Board formally assesses its own 
performance with an aim to improve the effectiveness of the Board and the Committees. 
During the year, Board Evaluation cycle was completed by the Company internally which 
includes the evaluation of the Board as a whole, committees, independent directors and other 
individual directors. The evaluation process focused on various aspects of the functioning of 
the Board and Committees such as composition of the Board and Committees, experience and 
competencies, performance of specific duties and obligations, governance issues, etc. The 
guidance note issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India on Board Evaluation was 
duly considered while conducting the evaluation exercise. Separate exercise was carried out 
to evaluate the performance of individual Directors on parameters such as attendance, 
contribution and independent judgement. 
 

The process of board evaluation is carried out by Board, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and by Independent Directors in the following manner: 
 

• Board: The Board evaluates the performance of Board as whole, Committees of the Board 
and Individual Directors and chairperson of the Company. 
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• Nomination and Remuneration Committee: The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
evaluates the performance of all the individual Directors 
• Independent Directors: The Independent directors in their meeting evaluates the 
performance of all Non-Independent Directors, Chairperson and Board of Directors as a 
Whole 
 

As an outcome of the above exercise, it was noted that the Board as a whole is functioning as 
a cohesive body which is well engaged with different perspectives. The Board Members from 
different backgrounds bring about different complementarities that help Board discussions to 
be rich and value adding. It was also noted that the Committees are functioning well and 
besides the Committee’s terms of reference as mandated by law, important issues are brought 
up and discussed in the Committee Meetings. The evaluation exercise also suggested that the 
Board succession planning exercise has been embedded well in the Board processes. 
 

14. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 
 
Your Company is committed to highest standards of ethical, moral and legal business conduct. 
The Company has a policy on whistle blower and vigil mechanism for providing a framework 
to promote responsible and secure whistle blowing. It protects Directors and employees 
wishing to raise a concern about serious irregularities within the Company. The Policy is 
available on the Company’s website at the link: http://www.vinayakpolycon.com/policies. 
 
During FY 2021-22, no complaint was received. Further, no individual was denied access to 
the Audit Committee for reporting concerns, if any 
 

15. LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
 

During the year under review, the company has not provided any loan to any person or other 
body corporate; neither it has given any guarantee or provided security in connection with a 
loan nor it has acquired by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise the securities of any 
other body corporate. 
 

16. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
 

Currently, the Board has th ree  committees: Audit committee, Nomination and 
Remuneration committee and S takeholders’ Relationship committee. All committees 
consist entirely of independent directors. During the year under review, there were no 
change in the composition of the any of the committees of the Company. 
 

The composition of the committees and compliances, as per the applicable provisions of 
the Act and Rules, are as follows:   

Name of the 
Committee 

Compositio
n of the 
Committee 

Highlights of duties, responsibilities and activities 

Audit Committee Mrs. Anima 
Bordia, 
Chairperson 
 
Mr. Niraj 
Nahata 
 
Mr. Pawan 
Nahata 

As per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, following are the duties 
of Audit committee:  

• To oversee the financial reporting process and disclosure of financial 
information.   

• To review with management, quarterly, half yearly and annual financial 
statements and ensure their accuracy and correctness before submission to 
the Board. 

• To review with management and internal auditors, the adequacy of 
internal control systems, approving the internal audit plans and reviewing 
the efficacy of their function, discussion and review of periodic audit 
reports including findings of internal investigations. 
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• To recommend the appointment of the internal and statutory auditors and 
fixing their remuneration.                   

• To hold discussions with the statutory and internal auditors. 
 
Audit committee performed all of its duties during the year. 
 
All recommendations made by the audit committee during the year 
were accepted by the Board. 
 

 
Nomination 
and 
Remuneration 
Committee 

Mrs. Anima 
Bordia, 
Chairperson 
 
Mr. Niraj 
Nahata 
 
Mr. Pawan 
Nahata 

• The committee oversees and administers executive compensation, 
operating under a written policy adopted by our Board of Directors. 
As per Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013, Following are the duties 
of Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

• Carry out assignments from time to time, as prescribed under Schedule V 
to the Companies Act, 2013. 

• To recommend to the Board, compensation terms of the Executive 
Directors. 

• To devise a policy on diversity of Board of Directors. 
• To assist the Board in determining and implementing the Company’s 

Policy on the remuneration of Executive Directors. 
 

The committee has designed and continuously reviews the nomination and 
remuneration policy for our Directors and senior executives to align both 
short-term and long-term remuneration with business objectives and 
to link remuneration with the achievement of measurable performance 
goals. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has framed the 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy which is available on the 
website of the Company, http://www.vinayakpolycon.com/policies. 
 

Stakeholders 
Relationship 
Committee 

Mrs. Anima 
Bordia, 
Chairperson 
 
Mr. Niraj 
Nahata 
 
Mr. Pawan 
Nahata 

• The committee considers, specifically look into the various aspects 
of interest and resolve the grievances of the shareholders of the 
listed entity including complaints related to transfer of shares, non-
receipt of annual report. 
 

 
17. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

The Board of Directors met five times during the financial year 2021-22 on 10h June, 2021, 
30th June, 2021, 13th August, 2021, 29th October, 2021 and February 11th, 2022 The 
intervening gap between the meetings, frequency and quorum at these meetings were in 
conformity with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Listing Regulations and 
Secretarial Standards.  

The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board meetings 
during the year and at last Annual General Meeting, as also the number of Directorships and 
Committee memberships held by them in other companies are shown in the table: 
 

Name & 
Designation 
of Director 

Category No. of 
Meetings 

Held 

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended 

Whether 
Attended 

Last AGM 

No. of Outside 
Directorships 
of Other Companies 

No. of 
Committee 

Memberships 

No. of 
Committee 
Chairmans
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hips 

        
        

        
        

Mr. Bharat 
Kumar Baid, 

Managing 
Director 

Executive 
Director & 
Promoter 

5 5 Yes - - - 

       
 

 

Mr. Vikram 
Baid, Whole-
time Director 

 
 
    Mrs Samta  
    Baid 
 

Executive 
Director & 
Promoter 

 
 
Non-
Executive 
Director & 
Promoter 

5 
 
 
 
 
     5                                          

5 
 
 
 
 
        5                       

Yes 
 
 
 
 
      Yes                                                       

1 
 
 
 

 
1 

- - 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        
Mr. Pawan 

Nahata, 
Director 

Non- 
Executive 

Independent 
Director 

5 5 Yes - 3 - 

        
Mr. Niraj 
Nahata, 
Director 

Non- 
Executive 

Independent 
Director 

5 5 Yes - 3 - 

        
Mrs. Anima 

Bordia, 
Director 

Non- 
Executive 

Independent 
Director 

5 3 Yes - 3 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

The draft of the minutes prepared by the Company is circulated among the Directors for their 
comment / suggestion and finally after incorporating their views, final minutes are recorded 
in the minute’s books. Post meeting, important decisions taken were communicated to the 
concerned officials and departments for the effective implementation of the same. 

 
18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

The Company has framed the policy on related party transaction and Audit Committee has 
reviewed the related party transaction in every meeting. There are no material significant 
related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, KMP or other 
designated persons and their relatives which may have a potential conflict with the interest of 
the Company at large. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to 
Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in the form AOC 2 is annexed herewith as 
Annexure 3. 
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A list of all related party transactions is placed before the Audit Committee as well as the 
Board of Directors. The policy on related party transactions is available on Company’s 
website i.e. http://www.vinayakpolycon.com/policies. 
 

19. PARTICULAR OF EMPLOYEES 

 
Information required pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
rules made thereunder as amended from time to time has been given as Annexure 4, which 
forms a part of this Report. 
 

20. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY  
 
The current policy is to have an appropriate mix of executive and independent directors 
to maintain the independence of the Board, and separate its functions of governance 
and management. As on 31st March, 2022, the Board consists of 6 members, one of 
whom is whole-time director, one is managing director, one is Non- executive Director and 
three are independent directors. The Board periodically evaluates the need for change in 
its composition and size. 
 
During the year under review, there was no change in the Nomination and Remuneration 
policy of the Company. The policy of the Company on directors' appointment and 
remuneration, including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, 
independence of a director and other matters provided under Sub-section (3) of Section 178 
of the Companies Act, 2013, adopted by the Board, is available on the website of the 
Company, http://www.vinayakpolycon.com/policies. 
 

We affirm that the remuneration paid to the directors is as per the terms laid out in the 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company. 
 

21. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETING 
 

As per the requirement of Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, the Independent 
Directors of the Company met during the year, inter alia to: 
  

1. Review the performance of non - Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a whole;   
2. Review the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of 

the Executive and Non – Executive Directors;  
3. Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company 

management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably 

perform their duties. 

They expressed satisfaction over the performance of Non-Independent Directors, Chairperson 

and Board of Directors as a whole. 
 

22. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL 
 
The Company has well defined mechanisms in place to establish and maintain adequate 
internal controls over all operational and financial functions considering the nature, size and 
complexity of its business. The Company maintains adequate internal control systems that 
provide, among other things, reasonable assurance of recording the transactions of its 
operations in all material respects and of providing protection against significant misuse or 
loss of Company’s assets. The Company is following all the applicable Indian Accounting 
Standards as issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India for properly 
maintaining the books of accounts and reporting financial statements. 
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Mr. Praveen Maharwal, Internal Auditor of the Company independently evaluate adequacy of 
internal controls and audit the majority of the transactions undertaken by the Company. Post 
audit reviews are carried out to ensure that audit recommendations have been implemented.  
 

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors which comprises of Independent Directors, 
inter alia, reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of internal Control and monitors 
implementation of Internal Audit observations. 
 
During the financial year under review, the Statutory Auditor in their Report on the Internal 
Financial Control with reference to financial statements for the financial year 2021-22 has 
given unmodified report. 
 

23. CODE OF CONDUCT 
 

In Compliance with the Listing Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has 
framed and adopted Code of Conduct for all Board members and senior management 
personnel of the Company, which is available on website of the company, 
http://www.vinayakpolycon.com/codeofconduct. 
 

24. POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE 
 
Your Company is fully committed to uphold and maintain the dignity of women working in 
the Company. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 21 of the Sexual Harassment of Women 
at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition, Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has formulated 
an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary and 
trainees) are covered under this policy. An Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) was set up 
which is responsible for redressal of complaints related to sexual harassment at the workplace. 
The policy is available on the Company’s website at the link 
http://www.vinayakpolycon.com/policies. During the year under review, the Company has 
not received any complaint pertaining to sexual harassment. 
 

25. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 
The Company has framed and implemented a Risk Management Policy to identify the various 
business risks. This framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on the 
business objectives and enhance the Company’s competitive advantage. The Risk 
Management Policy defines the risk management approach across the enterprise at various 
levels including documentation and reporting. 
 

A systematic risk review process to identify, assess, monitor, manage and report risks 
supported this. The framework provides a comprehensive and systematic approach to identify 
and mitigate risks by embedding risk management as integral to planning at strategic and 
operational levels. This helped monitor, report and review identified risks in addition to 
considering emerging risks. 
 
There are various elements of risk which, in the opinion of the Board, may threaten the 
existence of the company some of which are as follows: 
 
Competition risk 

The dynamic nature of the market threatens growth and margins. The Company widened its 
product offerings and visibility, enhancing long-term client relationships. 
 

Technological disruption risk 
Rapid technology transformation redefines businesses and any delay in adaptation could 
affect revenues.  
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Manpower risk 

Inadequate / under-skilled resources could result in a loss of business opportunities. The 
Company’s talent acquisition function attracts qualified and skilled professionals. The 
Company also trains manpower for a minimum of 30 hours/year. It is more at middle/senior 
levels. 
 

Supply chain disruption risk 
 VPIL is successfully able to mitigate this risk owing to a strong network of suppliers and 
owned manufacturing facilities. 
 

26. LISTING FEES 
 
At present, the equity shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited (BSE). The annual 
listing fees for Financial Year 2021-22 and 2022-23 to BSE has been paid. 
 

27. DEPOSITORY SYSTEM 
 
The ISIN allotted to the Company is INE581M01016. The Company has also established the 
required connectivity with both the NSDL & CDSL through its registrar and share transfer 
agent MAS Services Pvt. Ltd., New Delhi for both physical and demat segments. 
 

The equity shares of the Company can be held in electronic form with any depository 
participant with whom the Members/Investors have their depository account. 
 

 

28. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of 
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company has adopted ‘Code of Conduct to regulate, 
monitor and report trading by Designated Persons and immediate relatives of Designated 
Persons’ and ‘Code of Practices and Procedures for fair disclosure of Unpublished Price 
Sensitive Information’. 
 

The Code of Practices & Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive 
Information is available on the website of the Company, 
http://www.vinayakpolycon.com/codeofconduct. 
 

29. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 
As per Regulation 15(2) of the Listing Regulation, the compliance with the Corporate 
Governance provisions shall not apply in respect of the following class of companies: 
 

a. Listed Entity having paid up equity share capital not exceeding Rs.10 crore and Net Worth 
not exceeding Rs.25 crore, as on the last day of the previous financial year; 

b. Listed Entity which has listed its specified securities on the SME Exchange. 
 
Since, the Company falls in the ambit of aforesaid exemption (a); hence compliance with the 
provisions of Corporate Governance shall not apply to the Company and it also does not form 
part of the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2021-22. 
 

However, our Company has complied with all the disclosures and requirements which are 
applicable under all the rules, regulations for the time being in force. 
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30. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report popularly known as MDAR is the 
communication straight from the management to their valued shareholders giving them 
insights into the present business conditions of the company and its future potential. It gives 
a bird’s eye view about the Company’s objective, predictions and forward-looking statements. 
This report is an integral part of the Boards’ Report. Aspects on industry structure and 
developments, opportunities and threats, outlook, risks, internal control systems and their 
adequacy, material developments in human resources and industrial relations have been 
covered in this Report. 
 
Company’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain 
financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).  
 
Our values and guiding principle have been woven around seven major aspects which are 
evidently visible in all the activities performed by the Company i.e. Customer Satisfaction, 
Innovation, Quality Product and Service, Employee Growth, Culture, Being Sensitive towards 
Society and Environment Protection. This guiding principle is now the culture of the 
organization and ensures that both internal and external customers are satisfied. 
 
A. Industry Structure & Development 

 

The Indian plastics industry has made a significant progress since beginning of 1957 with 
the production of polystyrene. Thereafter, the industry has grown and diversified rapidly. 
The industry spans the country and hosts more than 2,000 exporters. It employs about 4 
million people and comprises of more than 30,000 processing units, 85-90 percent of 
which are small and medium sized enterprises.  
 
Plastic bottles have become way of life and are in all sectors such as food and beverages, 
oil, pharma, drinking water and all other sectors. They do not fall into single use plastic 
as, they are environment-friendly and can be recycled repeatedly which further reduces 
their manufacturing cost. Hence their volume has reached around 20 million tons/pa 
globally Polyethylene terephthalate (PET) refers to a thermoplastic polymer resin of the 
polyester family which is widely used for manufacturing plastic bottles. In comparison 
with PP, HDPE and PVC bottles, PET bottles are more durable, transparent, lightweight, 
non-reactive, cost-effective, 100% Recyclable and thermally stable. 
 
During the period under review, there is significant increase in the use of plastic including 
PET Containers throughout the country. Clear Visibility of packed product in primary and 
secondary packaging has gained importance. The buyer wants to clearly see the inner 
contents before buying and wants the container to be unbreakable, child safe and durable. 
This led to great increase in manufacturing of plastic wares in the country especially PET.   
 
Your company is on its way to capitalize on this trend, through improved production of 
plastic products and through alliances with the suppliers who have specific expertise in 
the related field. 
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B. Opportunity  
 

The consumption of plastic is increasing at the rapid speed as it is easy and convenient to 
use and can easily be recycled.  It paves a path to the companies to make new development 
for the better positioning in the market. The ability to see the contents off the shelves 
before buying in a transparent container is always preferred over others. 
 
Vinayak Polycon International Limited continuously striving to increase its production 
and aims to provide better quality products to its consumers along with making strong 
position in domestic market.  
  

C. Threats 
 

• Temporary decline in the economic activity 
• Increased competition in the plastic industry due to entry of new players 
• Introduction of new technologies  
• Introduction of new taxes  
• Any unfavourable change in Government Policies may affect the profitability of the 

company. 
• Threat of substitutes 
• Rising cases of Takeovers or stressed companies where by Creditors have to agree to 

the plan offered by the buyer / Resolution professional. 
 

D. Segment wise or Product wise Performance 
 

The Company is mainly engaged in the business of manufacturing of Plastic Containers 
and Closures. The detailed segment wise performance has been given in ‘Financial 
Performance with respect to Operational Performance’. 

 
E. Outlook  

 

The Outlook of your Company is promising, in light of its refreshed mission and vision 
and clear strategic framework. Vinayak Polycon International Limited leadership team 
and employees at all levels are in line with the strategy and working towards making it a 
success. The Company’s product development team has developed an exciting range of 
plastic items which will fuel our growth in future 
 
VPIL is at a crucial juncture where the decisions we make in the transitory phase in 
anticipating the post-pandemic scenario will define our future growth. We will keep true 
to our core of being a deep value manufacturer while maintaining a lean cost structure and 
an eye on the Balance Sheet.  

 

F. Risks and Concerns 
 

We believe that great things never come from comfort zonesand so, we are constantly 
working on way to do things better every single moment. The Company is impacted by 
the change in the business environment both within the Country and globally and this 
necessitates continuous valuation. In the current scenario of competitive business 
environment and open economy across the world, no Company can imagine risk free 
business environment. Your Company is proactively taking steps to identify and monitor 
the risk and make efforts to mitigate significant risks that may affected.  
 
The Board of Directors is continuously and carefully monitoring the risks and concerns 
related to the business for example: macroeconomic factors, geographical concentration, 
change in the Government policies and legislation, increase in the raw material prices etc. 
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The Company has also taken several insurance policies to mitigate other risks and 
concerns of the Company. 
 
Competition is increasing day-by-day in all fields of business. Similarly, there is 
competition in plastic industries too. The company is facing various risks and obstacles 
which includes inflation risk, credit risk, interest rate risk, non-availability of raw-
material, high prices etc.  
 
In order to overcome such situations company is fully aware towards the preparation of 
appropriate programs, adoption of suitable policies and to take corrective and 
precautionary measures for safeguarding the company’s market position and further to 
strengthening it.  
 

G. Adequacy of Internal Control System  

 

VPIL has adequate internal financial control procedures commensuration with its size and 
nature of business. These control provide reasonable assurance regarding effectiveness 
and efficiency of operations, safeguarding of assets, prevention and detection of frauds 
and error, accuracy and timely preparation of reliable financial information. The Company 
has appointed Internal Auditor, who periodically audit at all units and report to the 
management. Based on the audit observation and recommendations, follow ups and 
remedial measures are being taken including review and increase in scope, on time to time. 
The Audit Committee reviews reports submitted by the Internal Auditor and Statutory 
Auditor. The Audit Committee also ascertain the views of the statutory auditor on the 
adequacy of internal control systems and takes appropriate action. Based on its evaluation, 
our internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively. 
 

H. Discussion on Financial Performance with respect to Operational Performance 
 
VPIL is doing well on fulfilling its objectives of growth, sustainability and reduce the post 
impact of COVID-19 to as less as possible while taking full care of its Human Capital. 
During the financial year 2021-22, your Company has achieved total revenue on 
amounting to Rs. 1528.71 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 1157 Lakhs in previous financial year 
and Net Profit after tax (PAT) has increased from loss Rs. 19.27 Lakhs to a Profit of Rs. 
4.21 Lakhs in financial year 2021-22. 
 
The overview of financial performance with respect to operational performance of the 
Company can be obtained from the various following ratio analysis: 
 

Particulars of 

Ratio 

F.Y. 

2021-22 

F.Y. 

2020-21 

Change 

in % 

Reason (if change is more than 

25%) 

Debtors 
Turnover Ratio 

4.06 3.26 24.78 N.A. 

Inventory 
Turnover Ratio 

5.06 3.33 51.89 Company had higher inventory 
turnover than earlier which is 
better for the company 

Interest 
Coverage Ratio 

1.10 .01 10900 After post Covid effects and 
lockdown higher interest coverage 
ration indicates better performance 
of the company 

Current Ratio 1.30 1.19 8.82 N.A. 
Debt Equity 
Ratio 

0.82 0.80 -18.18 N.A. 
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Operating 
Profit Margin 
% 

0.174 (1.92) -1.09 Higher operating profit indicates 
better efficiency for the company. 

Net Profit 
Margin % 

0.275 (1.67) -1.16 Increase is due to exceptional item 
as mentioned in the notes to 
financial statements of the 
company. 

 

Details of any change in Return on Net Worth as compared to the immediately previous 
financial year: 
Particulars F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2020-21 

Share Capital 308.13 308.13 
Reserve & Surplus 129.20 124.98 
Net Worth  437.33 433.11 

Profit After Tax 4.21 -19.27 

Return on Net Worth 0.96 -4.45 
 

I. Human Resources Development/Training  

 

Human Resources are considered to be a form of capital and wealth of the Company. The 
growth of the Company and improvement in the systems has been sustained by the active 
involvement of the employees with the Management. It has been the focus of the 
management to improve and expand the contribution of its human resources towards 
attainment of organizational goals and values. The technical expertise of the Management 
has been shared with the employees at the works, which keeps them motivated to meet 
and surpass the set targets. 
As on 31st March, 2022, the Company employed a total of 46 employees of which 12 were 
Officers and 34 belong to non-executive cadre. 
 

J. Trade Relations 

Vinayak Polycon International Ltd. believes in building teams across the business and 
functions with the aim to share knowledge and experience. Cross functional teams work 
with clear objectives to solve the issues and create value for the company. The company 
fosters open dialogue among the employees with the brief that the people, who 
communicate continuously and openly, build trust and mutual respect. 
 

The Company maintained healthy, cordial and harmonious Industrial relations at all 
levels. The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the valuable 
contribution by the employees of the Company. 
 

K. Cautionary Statement 

Some of the Statements in this Management's Discussions and Analysis describing the 
company's objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may be 'forward looking 
statements' within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results might 
differ substantially from those expressed or implied. Important developments that could 
affect the company's operations include changes in economic conditions affecting 
demand, supply and price movements in the domestic and overseas markets in which your 
Company operates, changes in the government regulations, tax laws and other statutes or 
other incidental factors. The Company assumes no responsibility in respect of forward-
looking statements, which may be amended or modified in future. 
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31. DISCLOSURE ON SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
 
The company complies with all applicable secretarial standards issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India. The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards and that such systems 
are adequate and operating effectively. 

 

 
32. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 

As required under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby confirm 
that: 
 
a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2022, the 

applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures 
from the same  
 

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the 
profit and loss of the Company for that period.  

 

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. 

 
d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a 'Going Concern' basis. 

 

e) The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company 
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively, and 

 

f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 
33. OTHER DISCLOSURES 

 
The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meetings. 
 
No application has been made under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code; hence the 
requirement to disclose the details of application made or any proceeding pending under 
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year along with their 
status as at the end of the financial year is not applicable. 
 
There was no revision of financial statements and Board’s Report of the Company during 
the year under review. 
 
Company has not issued equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or 
otherwise. 
 
The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares to its directors or employees 
 
There was no instance of one time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution. 
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 DIN: 00212506                                & CFO 
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Form No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 
The Members, 
Vinayak Polycon lnternational Limited 
312, Navjeevan Complex, 29, Station Road 
Jaipur - 302 006 (Rajasthan) 
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by Vinayak Polycon lnternational Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and the 
representations made by the Management and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, we 
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 
March 31, 2022 (“Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject 
to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 according to the provisions of: 
 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder; 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 
 
 
 
 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”): - 
 
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 

(repealed w.e.f. 13th August, 2021) (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021 (notified on 13th August, 2021) (Not applicable to the Company during the 
Audit Period); 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 
2008 (repealed w.e.f. 9th August, 2021) (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit 
Period); 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 
Regulations, 2021 (notified on 9th August, 2021) (Not applicable to the Company during the 
Audit Period); 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
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(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 
(repealed w.e.f. 10th June, 2021) (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

(j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 
(notified on 10th June, 2021) (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

(k) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

(l) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015; 
 

(vi) As confirmed by the management, there are no sector specific laws that are applicable specifically to the 
company. 

 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; 
ii. The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited. 

 
 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 
 
We further report that 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took 
place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.  
 
Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured and recorded as part 
of the minutes.  
 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 
We further report that during the audit period the company has not undertaken any events/actions having a major 
bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines standards 
etc. 
 
 
Place: Jaipur             For V. M. & Associates 
Date: August 09, 2022                          Company Secretaries 
UDIN: F009985D000767159                       (ICSI Unique Code P1984RJ039200)  

PR 581 / 2019 
 

 
CS Vikas Mehta 

Partner 
Membership No.: FCS 9985 

C P No.: 12789 
 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral 
part of this report. 
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Annexure A 
To, 

The Members, 

Vinayak Polycon lnternational Limited 
312, Navjeevan Complex, 29, Station Road 
Jaipur - 302 006 (Rajasthan) 
 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility 

is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to 

ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we 

followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 

company. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules 

and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

 

Place: Jaipur             For V. M. & Associates 
Date: August 09, 2022               Company Secretaries 
UDIN: F009985D000767159                                (ICSI Unique Code P1984RJ039200) 

PR 581 / 2019 
 

 
CS Vikas Mehta 

Partner 
Membership No.: FCS 9985 

C P No.: 12789 
 
 



 

[35] 
 

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22 

                                                                  Annexure 2 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
 

Information as per Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
 

A. Conservation of energy 
 
Energy conservation is one of the words we are hearing more and more. Energy conservation is not 
about making limited resources last as long as they can, that would mean that you are doing nothing 
more than prolong a crisis until we finally run out of energy resources all together. Conservation is 
the process of reducing demand on a limited supply and enabling that supply to begin to rebuild itself. 
Many times, the best way of doing this is to replace the energy used with an alternate. Without energy 
conservation, the world will deplete its natural resources. While some people don’t see that as an 
issue because it will take many decades to happen and they foresee that by the time the natural 
resource is gone there will be an alternative; the depletion also comes at the cost of creating an 
enormous destructive waste product that then impacts the rest of life. The goal with energy 
conservation techniques is reduce demand, protect and replenish supplies, develop and use alternative 
energy sources, and to clean up the damage from the prior energy processes. 
 
Steps taken for conservation of energy  

 
• Monitoring and analysis of energy consumption on periodic basis;  
• New moulding machines selected are always either servo controller or fully electric machines;  
• Replacement of conventional tubes and bulbs with LED;  
• Monitoring, benchmarking and selection of energy intensive equipment only;  
• Minimum use of energy by optimizing processes and material movement in factories;  
• ‘Machine On’ alarms and automatic switch off machines;  
• Share and implement best energy saving practices across manufacturing units 

 
 

B. Technology Absorption 
 
(i) Efforts made towards technology absorption 

The Company realizes that in order to stay competitive and avoid obsolescence, it will have to invest 
in technology across multiple product line and have to introduce the new products in line with the 
demand of the customers. In order to maintain its position, your Company has continuously and 
successfully developed state-of-the-art technology and methods for absorbing, adapting and 
effectively developing new products. Hence, the Company is making every effort to develop products 
to meet the changing demand of the public at large. The Company continues to perform Product 
Development activities to improve quality of products and to reduce production cost to serve its 
customer better. 

 
(ii) The Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product 

development or import substitution 
Reduction in down time, cycle time and repair costs has been achieved through the efforts taken on 
technology absorption. The company is always updated in terms of production process and 
technologies. 
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(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned 

from the beginning of the financial year) 
 

a) Details of technology imported: The Company has not imported any technology during the 
last three financial years. 

b) The year of import: Not Applicable 
c) Whether the technology has been fully absorbed: Not Applicable 
d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof: Not 

Applicable 
 

(iv) Expenditure incurred on Research and Development: NIL 
 

A. Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo 
 

There was no Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo in the company during the financial year. 
 

Date: 09.08.2022 
Place: Jaipur 
 

 

Registered Office: 312, Navjeevan  
Complex, 29, Station Road,  
Jaipur-302006 (Rajasthan) 
Tel: 0141-2377007 
 
investor@vinayakpolycon.com 
www.vinayakpolycon.com 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Vinayak Polycon International Limited 

 
 
 
 

BHARAT KUMAR BAID                  VIKRAM BAID 
MANAGING DIRECTOR     WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR 
 DIN: 00212506                                         & CFO 

DIN: 00217347 
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Annexure 3 
Form AOC-2 

  
(Pursuant to Clause (h) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 

Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangement entered into by the company with related parties referred to in 

sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms-length transactions under third 

proviso thereto 
 
1. Details of Contracts or Arrangements or transaction not at arm’s length basis: NIL 

  
Name(s) of 
Related Party 
and Nature of 
Relationship 

        (a) 

Nature of 
Contracts / 
Arrangements/ 
Transactions 

            (b) 

Duration of 
Contracts/ 
Arrangements/ 
Transactions 

           (c) 

Salient features 
of Contracts/ 
Arrangements/ 
Transactions, 
Including 
value, if any 

          (d) 

Justification for 
entering 
into such contracts or 
arrangements Or 
transactions 
        (e) 

Date(s) of 
approval 
by 
the Board 
       (f) 

Amount 
paid as 
advances, 
if any 

      (g) 

Date on 
which 
special 
Resolution 
passed in 
general 
meeting as 
required 
under first 
proviso to 
Section 188   
           (h)         

   N/A               
2. Details of Material Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions at arm’s length basis: 

  
 
 

Related Party 
and Nature of 
Relationship 

(a) 

Nature of 
Contracts / 

Arrangements/ 
Transactions 

(b) 

Duration of 
Contracts/ 

Arrangements
/ 

Transactions 
(c) 

Salient features of Contracts/ 
Arrangements/ 

Transactions, including value, if any 
                          (d) 

Date of 
approval by 
the Board 

/ Audit 
Committee 

          (e) 

Amount 
paid 

as advances, 
if any 

        (f) 

 
Mrs. Vinod Baid, 

Wife of Mr. 
Bharat Kumar 

Baid, Managing 
Director 

Rent Payment 
11 months 
subject to 
renewal 

Payment of Rs. 71,500 per month 
being House Rent of Director’s 
Residence to Mrs. Vinod Baid  

11.02.2022 Nil 

      
      

M/s Crystal 
Packaging, wives 

of Mr. Bharat 
Kuamr Baid and 

Mr. Vikram Baid, 
Directors are 

Partner 

Purchase and 
Sale Contract 

Yearly 
Contract 

Purchase of Manufactured Products & 
Raw Material from M/s Crystal 
Packaging and Sale of Scrap to 

Crystal Packaging upto Rs. 10 Crore 
in any financial year 

30.06.2021 Nil 

   

 
 
 
 

  

      
M/s Jai Sinter 

Polycon Private 
Limited, Vikram 
Baid is Director 
of the Company 

Rent Payment  
11 months 
subject to 
renewal 

Payment of Rs. 2,00,000 from June 
Month  being rent of Plant & 

Machinery and Building of M/s Jai 
Sinter Polycon Private Limited 

30.06.2021 Nil 
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Jai Sinter Polycon 
Private Limited, 
Vikram Baid is 
Director of the 

Company 

Labor Services 
10 years 
subject to 
renewal 

Payment of labor charges of labor 
supplied by M/s Jai Sinter Polycon 
Private Limited, Payment will be 

made as per Amount of Invoice raised 
by Jai Sinter Polycon Private Limited 
plus commission charges upto 10%  

14.11.2019 Nil 

      
 

 
 
Date: 09.08.2022 
Place: Jaipur 
 

 

Registered Office: 312, Navjeevan  
Complex, 29, Station Road,  
Jaipur-302006 (Rajasthan) 
Tel: 0141-2377007 
 
investor@vinayakpolycon.com 
www.vinayakpolycon.com 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Vinayak Polycon International Limited 

 
 
 
 

BHARAT KUMAR BAID                  VIKRAM BAID 
MANAGING DIRECTOR     WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR 
DIN: 00212506                & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

DIN: 00217347 
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Annexure 4 
 

(a) Information as per Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

(Amount in Lakhs) 
(i) Remuneration paid to Whole Time Director/Managing Director  

Name of Director Remuneration 
in FY 2021-22 

Remuneration 
in FY 2020-21 

% Inc./(Dec.) in 
Remuneration 

Ratio to 
Remuneration 

to MRE 
Mr. Vikram Baid 28.43 28.43* - 32.90 
     
Mr. Bharat Kumar Baid 29.89 29.89* - 34.59 

* The remuneration has been taken as amount actually paid to them by the company. 
 
(ii) Remuneration paid to KMPs 

Name of KMP Remuneration 
in FY 2021-22 

Remuneration 
in FY 2020-21 

% Inc./(Dec.) in 
Remuneration 

Ratio to 
Remuneration 

to MRE 
Mr. Vikram Baid, CFO Nil Nil N/A N/A 
     
Miss Shikha Natani, CS 
 
*Miss Rashmi Agarwal, CS 

2.76 
 

.01 

Nil 
     
           3.90 

- 
 

(97.43) 

3.19 
 

.1 
 
 

Ratio of remuneration to median remuneration of the employees is calculated on the basis 

of total amount paid as remuneration during the financial year 2021-22.  

 

*Miss Rashmi Agarwal resigned from the post of Company Secretary and Compliance 

Officer w.e.f. April 10, 2021. 
 

(iii) The median remuneration of employees was Rs. 86,400 in financial year 2021-22 and Rs. 

1,23,888 in financial year 2020-21.  

(iv) Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company was 46 employees as on 31st 

March 2022.  

(v) The average percentile increase already made in the salaries of the employees other than 

the managerial personnel in the financial year and its comparison with the percentile 

increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are 

any exceptional circumstances for increase in the remuneration.  

- Average increase in the remuneration of all employees excluding KMP is 6.06%.  

-Increase in salary is based on the Company’s performance, individual performance, 

inflation, prevailing industry trends, benchmarks and pandemic situation. 

(vi) Remuneration paid during the year ended on 31st March, 2022 is as per the Nomination 

and Remuneration Policy of the Company. 
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(b) Information as per Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

 
List of Top 10 employees of the Company according to the remuneration drawn during the year 2021-
22 as per the Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014, as amended: 
 

Name Designation Remunerat
ion 
(In 

Rupees) 

Nature 
of 

Employ
ment 

Qualification Expe
rienc

e 
(Yea
rs) 

Joining 
Date 

Ag
e 

(Y
ea
rs) 

Last 
Employ

ment 

Name of Director 
or Manager of 

whom such 
employee is relative 

% of equity 
shares held 

by employee 
along with 
spouse and 
dependent 
children  

Bharat 
Kumar Baid 

Managing 
Director 

29,88,900/
- 

Contract
ual 

B.Com. FCA 50 *31-12-09 72 Polycon 
Internati
onal 
Limited  

Father of Mr. Vikram 
Baid, Executive Director 
& CFO and Father-in-law 
of Mrs. Samta Baid, Non-
Executive Director 

16.49 

Vikram 
Baid 

Executive 
Director & 
CFO 

28,43,100/- Contract
ual 

B.Com. (Hons.), 
MBF, ACA 

22 *31-12-09 46 Polycon 
Internati
onal 
Limited 

Son of Mr. Bharat Kumar 
Baid, Managing Director 
and Husband of Mrs. 
Samta Baid, Non-
Executive Director 

13.01 

Madhauo 
Rao Patil 

Plant 
Engineer 

6,42,000/- On roll BA 18 *31-12-09 53 Polycon 
Internati
onal 
Limited 

- - 

Madhumati 
Patil 

Junior 
Manager 

4,80,000/- On roll Diploma (Comp.) 13 01-07-18 51 - - - 

K. Magesh Engineer 4,56,000/- On roll Diploma Engineer 
(Electrical) 

10 01-07-11 37 - - - 

Shiv Nand 
B Biradar 

Engineer 4,44,000/- On roll Metric 7 01-07-14 43 - - - 

S. Mohan 
Raj 

Engineer 4,38,000/- On roll ITI 7 01-08-12 33 - - - 

Mekchuin 
Doley 

Engineer 4,26,000/- On roll 12th 8 01-07-11 39 - - - 

Girdhari Lal 
Jangid 

Plant 
Engineer 

4,29,600/- On roll B. Com. 35 *31-12-09 60 Polycon 
Internati
onal 
Limited 

- - 

Shikha 
Natani 

Company 
Secretary & 
Compliance 
Officer 

2,76,000/- On roll M. Com., ACS 1 30-06-21 31 - - - 

*The Company was demerged from Polycon International Limited and incorporated on 31st 

December, 2009, hence, joining date of employees is taken as 31st December, 2009. Earlier they were 
working in Polycon International Limited. 
 
Date: 09.08.2022 
Place: Jaipur 
 

 

Registered Office: 312, Navjeevan  
Complex, 29, Station Road,  
Jaipur-302006 (Rajasthan) 
Tel: 0141-2377007 
investor@vinayakpolycon.com 
www.vinayakpolycon.com 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Vinayak Polycon International Limited 

 
 
 
 

BHARAT KUMAR BAID                        VIKRAM BAID 
MANAGING DIRECTOR         WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR 
 DIN: 00212506                  & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

                                                                    DIN: 00217347 
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INDEPENDENT	AUDITOR’S	REPORT	
	

To	the	Members	of	Vinayak	Polycon	International	Limited	
	
Report	on	the	Audit	of	the	Standalone	Financial	Statements	
	
Opinion	

We	have	audited	the	standalone	financial	statements	of	Vinayak	Polycon	International	Limited	
(“the	Company”),	which	 comprise	 the	balance	 sheet	 as	 at	 31st	March	2022,	 and	 the	 statement	of	
Profit	and	Loss,	statement	of	changes	in	equity	and	statement	of	cash	flows	for	the	year	ended,	and	
notes	to	the	financial	statements,	including	a	summary	of	significant	accounting	policies	and	other	
explanatory	information.	

In	our	opinion	and	to	the	best	of	our	information	and	according	to	the	explanations	given	to	us,	the	
aforesaid	 standalone	 financial	 statements	 give	 the	 information	 required	 by	 the	 Companies	 Act,	
2013	(“the	Act”)	 in	 the	manner	so	required	and	give	a	 true	and	 fair	view	 in	conformity	with	 the	
Indian	 Accounting	 Standards	 prescribed	 under	 section	 133	 of	 the	 Act	 read	with	 the	 Companies	
(Indian	Accounting	Standards)	Rules,	2015,	as	amended,	(“Ind	AS”)	and	other	accounting	principles	
generally	accepted	in	India,	of	the	state	of	affairs	of	the	Company	as	at	31st	March,	2022,	the	profit	
and	Total	Comprehensive	Income,	changes	in	equity	and	its	cash	flows	for	the	year	ended	on	that	
date.	

Basis	for	Opinion	

We	 conducted	 our	 audit	 in	 accordance	 with	 the	 Standards	 on	 Auditing	 (SAs)	 specified	 under	
section	143(10)	of	the	Act.	Our	responsibilities	under	those	Standards	are	further	described	in	the	
Auditor’s	Responsibilities	 for	 the	Audit	of	 the	Financial	Statements	section	of	our	report.	We	are	
independent	 of	 the	 Company	 in	 accordance	 with	 the	 Code	 of	 Ethics	 issued	 by	 the	 Institute	 of	
Chartered	Accountants	of	India	(ICAI)	together	with	the	ethical	requirements	that	are	relevant	to	
our	audit	of	the	financial	statements	under	the	provisions	of	the	Act	and	the	Rules	thereunder,	and	
we	have	fulfilled	our	other	ethical	responsibilities	in	accordance	with	these	requirements	and	the	
Code	of	Ethics.	We	believe	that	the	audit	evidence	we	have	obtained	is	sufficient	and	appropriate	to	
provide	a	basis	for	our	opinion.		

Other	Information	

The	 Company’s	 Board	 of	 Directors	 is	 responsible	 for	 the	 preparation	 of	 other	 information.	 The	
other	information	comprises	the	information	included	in	the	Management	Discussion	and	Analysis	
and	 Board’s	 Report	 including	 Annexures	 to	 Board’s	 Report,	 but	 does	 not	 include	 the	 financial	
statements	and	our	auditor’s	report	thereon.	

Our	opinion	on	the	standalone	financial	statements	does	not	cover	the	other	 information	and	we	
will	not	express	any	form	of	assurance	conclusion	thereon.	

In	connection	with	our	audit	of	the	standalone	financial	statements,	our	responsibility	is	to	read	the	
other	 information	 and,	 in	 doing	 so,	 consider	 whether	 the	 other	 information	 is	 materially	
inconsistent	with	the	standalone	financial	statements	or	our	knowledge	obtained	during	the	course	
of	our	audit,	or	otherwise	appears	to	be	materially	misstated.	
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Management’s	Responsibility	for	the	Standalone	Financial	Statements	

The	Company’s	Board	of	Directors	is	responsible	for	the	matters	stated	in	section	134(5)	of	the	Act	
with	respect	 to	 the	preparation	of	 these	standalone	 financial	statements	 that	give	a	 true	and	 fair	
view	 of	 the	 financial	 position,	 financial	 performance,	 total	 comprehensive	 income,	 changes	 in	
equity	 and	 cash	 flows	 of	 the	 Company	 in	 accordance	 with	 the	 Ind-AS	 and	 other	 accounting	
principles	generally	 accepted	 in	 India.	This	 responsibility	 also	 includes	maintenance	of	 adequate	
accounting	records	 in	accordance	with	 the	provisions	of	 the	Act	 for	safeguarding	of	 the	assets	of	
the	 Company	 and	 for	 preventing	 and	 detecting	 frauds	 and	 other	 irregularities;	 selection	 and	
application	 of	 appropriate	 accounting	 policies;	 making	 judgments	 and	 estimates	 that	 are	
reasonable	 and	 prudent;	 and	 design,	 implementation	 and	 maintenance	 of	 adequate	 internal	
financial	 controls,	 that	were	operating	effectively	 for	 ensuring	 the	accuracy	and	 completeness	of	
the	accounting	records,	relevant	to	the	preparation	and	presentation	of	the	financial	statement	that	
give	a	true	and	fair	view	and	are	free	from	material		misstatement,	whether	due	to	fraud	or	error.	

In	 preparing	 the	 financial	 statements,	 management	 is	 responsible	 for	 assessing	 the	 Company’s	
ability	 to	continue	as	a	going	concern,	disclosing,	as	applicable,	matters	related	 to	going	concern	
and	using	the	going	concern	basis	of	accounting	unless	management	either	intends	to	liquidate	the	
Company	or	to	cease	operations,	or	has	no	realistic	alternative	but	to	do	so.	

The	Board	of	Directors	are	responsible	for	overseeing	the	Company’s	financial	reporting	process.	

Auditor’s	Responsibilities	for	the	Audit	of	the	Financial	Statements	

Our	 objectives	 are	 to	 obtain	 reasonable	 assurance	 about	 whether	 the	 financial	 statements	 as	 a	
whole	are	free	from	material	misstatement,	whether	due	to	fraud	or	error,	and	to	issue	an	auditor’s	
report	 that	 includes	 our	 opinion.	Reasonable	 assurance	 is	 a	 high	 level	 of	 assurance,	 but	 is	 not	 a	
guarantee	 that	 an	 audit	 conducted	 in	 accordance	 with	 SAs	 will	 always	 detect	 a	 material	
misstatement	 when	 it	 exists.	 Misstatements	 can	 arise	 from	 fraud	 or	 error	 and	 are	 considered	
material	 if,	 individually	 or	 in	 the	 aggregate,	 they	 could	 reasonably	 be	 expected	 to	 influence	 the	
economic	decisions	of	users	taken	on	the	basis	of	these	financial	statements.	

As	 part	 of	 an	 audit	 in	 accordance	 with	 SAs,	 we	 exercise	 professional	 judgment	 and	 maintain	
professional	skepticism	throughout	the	audit.	We	also:	

• Identify	and	assess	the	risks	of	material	misstatement	of	the	financial	statements,	whether	
due	to	fraud	or	error,	design	and	perform	audit	procedures	responsive	to	those	risks,	and	
obtain	audit	evidence	that	is	sufficient	and	appropriate	to	provide	a	basis	for	our	opinion.	
The	risk	of	not	detecting	a	material	misstatement	resulting	 from	fraud	 is	higher	 than	 for	
one	 resulting	 from	 error,	 as	 fraud	may	 involve	 collusion,	 forgery,	 intentional	 omissions,	
misrepresentations,	or	the	override	of	internal	control.	

• Obtain	an	understanding	of	 internal	control	relevant	to	the	audit	 in	order	to	design	audit	
procedures	that	are	appropriate	in	the	circumstances.	Under	section	143(3)(i)	of	the	Act,	
we	are	also	responsible	for	expressing	our	opinion	on	whether	the	company	has	adequate	
internal	financial	controls	system	in	place	and	the	operating	effectiveness	of	such	controls.	

• Evaluate	 the	 appropriateness	 of	 accounting	 policies	 used	 and	 the	 reasonableness	 of	
accounting	estimates	and	related	disclosures	made	by	management.	

• Conclude	 on	 the	 appropriateness	 of	 management’s	 use	 of	 the	 going	 concern	 basis	 of	
accounting	 and,	 based	 on	 the	 audit	 evidence	 obtained,	 whether	 a	 material	 uncertainty	
exists	 related	 to	 events	 or	 conditions	 that	may	 cast	 significant	 doubt	 on	 the	 Company’s	
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ability	to	continue	as	a	going	concern.	If	we	conclude	that	a	material	uncertainty	exists,	we	
are	 required	 to	 draw	 attention	 in	 our	 auditor’s	 report	 to	 the	 related	 disclosures	 in	 the	
financial	 statements	 or,	 if	 such	 disclosures	 are	 inadequate,	 to	 modify	 our	 opinion.	 Our	
conclusions	are	based	on	the	audit	evidence	obtained	up	to	the	date	of	our	auditor’s	report.	
However,	 future	 events	 or	 conditions	may	 cause	 the	 Company	 to	 cease	 to	 continue	 as	 a	
going	concern.	

• Evaluate	 the	 overall	 presentation,	 structure	 and	 content	 of	 the	 financial	 statements,	
including	 the	disclosures,	and	whether	 the	 financial	 statements	 represent	 the	underlying	
transactions	and	events	in	a	manner	that	achieves	fair	presentation.	

Materiality	 is	 the	 magnitude	 of	 misstatements	 in	 the	 standalone	 financial	 statements	 that,	
individually	 or	 in	 aggregate,	 makes	 it	 probable	 that	 the	 economic	 decisions	 of	 a	 reasonably	
knowledgeable	 user	 of	 the	 financial	 statements	 may	 be	 influenced.	 Weconsider	 quantitative	
materiality	and	qualitative	factors	in	planning	the	scope	of	our	audit	work	and		

We	communicate	with	those	charged	with	governance	regarding,	among	other	matters,	the	planned	
scope	and	timing	of	the	audit	and	significant	audit	findings,	including	any	significant	deficiencies	in	
internal	control	that	we	identify	during	our	audit.	
	
We	 also	 provide	 those	 charged	 with	 governance	 with	 a	 statement	 that	 we	 have	 complied	 with	
relevant	 ethical	 requirements	 regarding	 independence,	 and	 to	 communicate	 with	 them	 all	
relationships	and	other	matters	that	may	reasonably	be	thought	to	bear	on	our	independence,	and	
where	applicable,	related	safeguards.	
	
From	 the	matters	 communicated	with	 those	 charged	with	 governance,	we	determine	 those	matters	
that	were	of	most	 significance	 in	 the	audit	of	 the	 financial	 statements	of	 the	current	period	and	are	
therefore	 the	 key	 audit	 matters.	 We	 describe	 these	 matters	 in	 our	 auditor’sreport	 unless	 law	 or	
regulation	precludes	public	disclosure	about	the	matter	or	when,	in	extremely	rare	circumstances,	we	
determine	that	a	matter	should	not	be	communicated	in	our	report	because	the	adverse	consequences	
of	 doing	 so	 would	 reasonably	 be	 expected	 to	 outweigh	 the	 public	 interest	 benefits	 of	 such	
communication.	

Report	on	Other	Legal	and	Regulatory	Requirements	

1. As	 required	 by	 the	 Companies	 (Auditor’s	 Report)	 Order,	 2020	 (“the	 Order”),	 issued	 by	 the	
Central	Government	of	India	in	terms	of	sub-section	(11)	of	section	143	of	the	Act,	we	give	in	the	
Annexure	A	statement	on	the	matters	specified	in	paragraphs	3	and	4	of	the	Order,	to	the	extent	
applicable.	

2. As	required	by	Section	143(3)	of	the	Act,	we	report	that:	

(a) 	We	have	sought	and	obtained	all	the	information	and	explanations	which	to	the	best	of	our	
knowledge	and	belief	were	necessary	for	the	purposes	of	our	audit.	

(b) In	our	opinion,	proper	books	of	account	as	required	by	law	have	been	kept	by	the	Company	
so	far	as	it	appears	from	our	examination	of	those	books.	

(c) The	Standalone	Balance	Sheet,	the	Standalone	Statement	of	Profit	and	Loss	(Including	Other	
Comprehensive	Income),	the	Standalone	Statement	of	Changes	in	Equity	and	the	Standalone	
Statement	of	Cash	Flows	dealt	

(d) In	our	opinion,	 the	aforesaid	standalone	 financial	 statements	comply	with	 the	Accounting	
Standards	specified	under	Section	133	of	the	Act.	
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(e) On	 the	 basis	 of	 the	written	 representations	 received	 from	 the	 directors	 as	 on	 31stMarch,	
2022	taken	on	record	by	the	Board	of	Directors,	none	of	the	directors	is	disqualified	as	on	
31st	March,	2022	from	being	appointed	as	a	director	in	terms	of	Section	164	(2)	of	the	Act.	

(f) 	With	 respect	 to	 the	adequacy	of	 the	 internal	 financial	 controls	over	 financial	 reporting	of	
the	Company	and	the	operating	effectiveness	of	such	controls,	refer	to	our	separate	Report	
in	“Annexure	B”.	

(g) 		With	respect	to	the	other	matters	to	be	included	in	the	Auditor’s	Report	in	accordance	with	
Rule	11	of	the	Companies	(Audit	and	Auditors)	Rules,	2014,	in	our	opinion	and	to	the	best	of	
our	information	and	according	to	the	explanations	given	to	us:	

i. The	 Company	 does	 not	 have	 any	 pending	 litigations	 which	 would	 impact	 its	 financial	
position.	

ii. The	 Company	 has	 made	 provision,	 as	 required	 under	 the	 applicable	 law	 or	 accounting	
standards,	for	material	foreseeable	losses,	if	any,	on	long-term	contracts	including	derivative	
contracts.There	 were	 no	 amounts	 which	 were	 required	 to	 be	 transferred	 to	 the	 Investor	
Education	and	Protection	Fund	by	the	Company.	

iii. The	Company	has	provided	requisite	disclosures	in	the	financial	statements,	on	the	basis	of	
information	 available	 with	 the	 Company.	 Based	 on	 audit	 procedures	 and	 relying	 on	 the	
management	representation,	we	report	that	the	disclosures	are	in	accordance	with	books	of	
account	maintained	by	the	Company	and	as	produced	to	us	by	the	Management.		

iv. (a)	 The	 management	 has	 represented	 that,	 to	 the	 best	 of	 its	 knowledge	 and	 belief,	 as	
disclosed	in	the	notes	to	the	Standalone	Financial	Statements,	no	funds	have	been	advanced	
or	loaned	or	invested	(either	from	borrowed	funds	or	share	premium	or	any	other	sources	
or	 kind	 of	 funds)	 by	 the	 Company	 to	 or	 in	 any	 other	 person(s)	 or	 entity(ies),	 including	
foreign	entities	(“Intermediaries”),	with	the	understanding,	whether	recorded	in	writing	or	
otherwise,	that	the	Intermediary	shall,	whether,	directly	or	indirectly,	lend	or	invest	in	other	
persons	 or	 entities	 identified	 in	 any	manner	whatsoever	 by	 or	 on	 behalf	 of	 the	 Company	
(“Ultimate	 Beneficiaries”)	 or	 provide	 any	 guarantee,	 security	 or	 the	 like	 on	 behalf	 of	 the	
Ultimate	Beneficiaries	;	
(b)	 The	 management	 has	 represented	 that,	 to	 the	 best	 of	 its	 knowledge	 and	 belief,	 as	
disclosed	in	the	notes	to	the	Standalone	Financial	Statements,no	funds	have	been	received	
by	 the	 Company	 from	 any	 person(s)	 or	 entity(ies),	 including	 foreign	 entities	 (“Funding	
Parties”),	 with	 the	 understanding,	 whether	 recorded	 in	 writing	 or	 otherwise,	 that	 the	
Company	 shall,	 whether,	 directly	 or	 indirectly,	 lend	 or	 invest	 in	 other	 persons	 or	 entities	
identified	 in	 any	 manner	 whatsoever	 by	 or	 on	 behalf	 of	 the	 Funding	 Party	 (“Ultimate	
Beneficiaries”)	 or	 provide	 any	 guarantee,	 security	 or	 the	 like	 on	 behalf	 of	 the	 Ultimate	
Beneficiaries	;	and	

v. (c)	Based	on	such	audit	procedures	that	we	considered	reasonable	and	appropriate	 in	the	
circumstances,	 nothing	 has	 come	 to	 our	 notice	 that	 has	 caused	 us	 to	 believe	 that	 the	
representations	under	subclause	(a)	and	(b)	contain	any	material	misstatement.	

vi. No	dividend	has	been	declared	and	paid	during	the	year	by	the	Company.	
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3. 	The	Company	has	paid/	provided	for	managerial	remuneration	in	accordance	with	the	
requisite	approvals	mandated	by	the	provisions	of	Section	197	read	with	Schedule	V	to	the	
Act.	

	
	

FOR	TAMBI	ASHOK	&	ASSOCIATES	
	 Chartered	Accountants	
	 Firm	Reg.			No.	005301C	

	
	 	
	 ASHOK	KUMAR	TAMBI	
Place:		JAIPUR		 	 	 	 	 	 	 																						PARTNER	
Date:	30-05-2022	 	 	 	 	 																																				Membership	No.:	074100	
UDIN	No.		22074100AJWAWF9355	 	
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Annexure	 A	 referred	 to	 in	 paragraph	 1	 under	 the	 heading	 “Report	 on	 other	 legal	 and	 regulatory	
requirements”	of	our	report	of	even	date	
To	the	Members	of	Vinayak	Polycon	International	Limited	
	
i. (a)  (i)	 The	 Company	 is	 maintaining	 proper	 records	 showing	 full	 particulars,	 including	

quantitative	details	and	situation,	of	Property,	Plant	and	Equipment.	
(ii)	The	Company	is	not	having	any	Intangible	Assets. 

 
(b)  The	Property,	Plant	and	Equipment	are	physically	verified	by	the	Management	according	to	a	
phased	programme	designed	 to	cover	all	 the	 items	over	a	period	of	 three	years	which,	 in	our	
opinion,	 is	 reasonable	 having	 regard	 to	 the	 size	 of	 the	 Company	 and	 the	 nature	 of	 its	 assets.	
Pursuant	to	the	programme,	a	portion	of	the	Property,	Plant	and	Equipment	has	been	physically	
verified	by	the	Management	during	the	year	and	no	material	discrepancies	have	been	noticed	on	
such	verification.	

(c)  The	title	deeds	of	all	the	immovable	properties	(other	than	properties	where	the	Company	is	a	
lessee	and	the	lease	agreements	are	duly	executed	in	favour	of	the	lessee),	as	disclosed	in	Note	
2A	on	Property,	Plant	 and	Equipment	 to	 the	 Standalone	Financial	 Statements,	 are	held	 in	 the	
name	of	the	Company. 

(d)  The	Company	has	chosen	cost	model	for	its	Property,	Plant	and	Equipment	(including	Right	of	
Use	 assets)	 and	 Intangible	 Assets.	 Consequently,	 as	 stated	 in	 Note	 39(s)	 to	 the	 Standalone	
Financial	Statements,	the	question	of	our	commenting	on	whether	the	revaluation	is	based	on	
the	valuation	by	a	Registered	Valuer,	or	specifying	the	amount	of	change,	if	the	change	is	10%	or	
more	in	the	aggregate	of	the	net	carrying	value	of	each	class	of	Property,	Plant	and	Equipment	
(including	Right	of	Use	assets)	or	Intangible	Assets	does	not	arise.	

(e) Based	 on	 the	 information	 and	 explanations	 furnished	 to	 us,	 as	 stated	 in	 Note	 39(a)	 to	 the	
Standalone	Financial	Statements,	no	proceedings	have	been	initiated	on	or	are	pending	against	
the	 Company	 for	 holding	 benami	 property	 under	 the	 Prohibition	 of	 Benami	 Property	
Transactions	Act,	1988	(as	amended	in	2016)	(formerly	the	Benami	Transactions	(Prohibition)	
Act,	 1988	 (45	 of	 1988))	 and	 Rules	 made	 there	 under,	 and	 therefore	 the	 question	 of	 our	
commenting	on	whether	the	Company	has	appropriately	disclosed	the	details	in	its	Standalone	
Financial	Statements	does	not	arise.	

	
ii. (a) The	physical	verification	of	inventory,	excluding	stocks	with	third	parties	and	goods-in-transit,	

has	 been	 conducted	 at	 reasonable	 intervals	 by	 the	 Management	 during	 the	 year	 and,	 in	 our	
opinion,	 the	 coverage	 and	 procedure	 of	 such	 verification	 by	 Management	 is	 appropriate.	 The	
discrepancies	noticed	on	physical	verification	of	inventory	as	compared	to	book	records	were	not	
10%	or	more	in	aggregate	for	each	class	of	inventory.  
(b) During	 the	year,	 the	Company	has	been	 sanctioned	working	 capital	 limits	 in	 excess	of	Rs.	 5	
crores,	in	aggregate,	from	banks	on	the	basis	of	security	of	current	assets.	The	Company	has	filed	
quarterly	 returns	 or	 statements	 with	 such	 banks,	 which	 are	 largely	 in	 agreement	 with	 the	
unaudited	books	of	account.	(Also	refer	Note	17	to	the	Standalone	Financial	Statements)	
 

iii. The	Company	has	not	 granted	 secured/	unsecured	 loans/advances	 in	nature	of	 loans,	 or	 stood	
guarantee,	 or	 provided	 security	 to	 any	 parties.	 Therefore,	 the	 reporting	 under	 clause	 3(iii)(c),	
(iii)(d),	(iii)(e)	and	(iii)(f)	of	the	Order	are	not	applicable	to	the	Company.	

 
iv. In	our	opinion,	and	according	to	the	information	and	explanations	given	to	us,	the	Company	has	

complied	 with	 the	 provisions	 of	 Section	 186	 of	 the	 Companies	 Act,	 2013	 in	 respect	 of	 the	
investments	made	by	it.	The	Company	has	not	granted	any	loans	or	provided	any	guarantees	or	
security	 to	 the	 parties	 covered	 under	 Sections	 185	 and	 186	 of	 the	 Companies	 Act,	 2013.	
Therefore,	the	provisions	of	Clause	3(iv)	of	the	said	Order	to	that	extent	are	not	applicable	to	the	
Company.	
	

 



 

[47] 
 

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22 

v.  The	Company	has	not	accepted	any	deposits	or	amounts	which	are	deemed	to	be	deposits	within	
the	meaning	of	 Sections	73,	 74,	 75	 and	76	of	 the	Act	 and	 the	Rules	 framed	 there	under	 to	 the	
extent	notified.	

 
vi. Pursuant	to	the	rules	made	by	the	Central	Government	of	India,	the	Company	is	not	required	to	

maintain	cost	records	as	specified	under	Section	148(1)	of	the	Act	in	respect	of	its	products.		
 

vii. (a)	According	 to	 the	 information	and	explanations	given	 to	us	and	 the	 records	of	 the	Company	
examined	 by	 us,	 in	 our	 opinion,	 the	 Company	 is	 generally	 regular	 in	 depositing	 undisputed	
statutory	dues	in	respect	of	provident	fund,	employees’	state	insurance	and	duty	of	customs,		and	
is	regular	in	depositing	undisputed	statutory	dues,	including	income	tax,	goods	and	services	tax	
and	other	material	statutory	dues,	as	applicable,	with	the	appropriate	authorities.		
(b)	According	 to	 the	 information	and	explanations	given	 to	us	and	 the	 records	of	 the	Company	
examined	by	us,	there	are	no	statutory	dues	of	duty	of	customs,	goods	and	services	tax,	provident	
fund,	income	tax,	employees’	state	insurance	and	professional	tax	which	have	not	been	deposited	
on	account	of	any	dispute.		
	

viii. 	According	 to	 the	 information	 and	 explanations	 given	 to	 us,	 as	 stated	 in	 Note	 39(f)	 to	 the	
Standalone	Financial	Statements,	and	the	records	of	 the	Company	examined	by	us,	 there	are	no	
transactions	 that	 have	 been	 surrendered	 or	 disclosed	 as	 income	 during	 the	 year	 in	 the	 tax	
assessments	 under	 the	 Income	 Tax	 Act,	 1961,	 that	 have	 not	 been	 recorded	 in	 the	 books	 of	
account. 

ix. (a) According	 to	 the	 records	 of	 the	 Company	 examined	 by	 us	 and	 the	 information	 and	
explanations	 given	 to	 us,	 the	 Company	 has	 not	 defaulted	 in	 repayment	 of	 loans	 or	 other	
borrowings	or	in	the	payment	of	interest	to	any	lender	during	the	year.	
(b)	 According	 to	 the	 information	 and	 explanations	 given	 to	 us	 and	 on	 the	 basis	 of	 our	 audit	
procedures,	we	 report	 that	 the	Company	has	not	been	declared	Wilful	Defaulter	by	 any	bankor	
financial	 institution	 or	 government	 or	 any	 government	 authority.	 (Also	 refer	 Note	 39(e)	 to	 the	
Standalone	Financial	Statements).	
(c) In	our	opinion,	and	according	to	the	information	and	explanations	given	to	us,	the	term	loans	
have	been	applied	 for	 the	purposes	 for	which	 they	were	obtained.	 (Also	refer	Note	39(n)	 to	 the	
Standalone	Financial	Statements)	
(d)	According	to	the	information	and	explanations	given	to	us,	and	the	procedures	performed	by	
us,	 and	 on	 an	 overall	 examination	 of	 the	 Standalone	 Financial	 Statements	 of	 the	 Company,	 we	
report	 that	 no	 funds	 raised	 on	 short-term	basis	 have	 been	 used	 for	 long-term	purposes	 by	 the	
Company.  

 
x. (a)	The	Company	has	not	raised	any	money	by	way	of	initial	public	offer	or	further	public	offer	

(including	debt	instruments)	during	the	year.	Accordingly,	the	reporting	under	clause	3(x)(a)	of	
the	Order	is	not	applicable	to	the	Company.		
	
(b)	The	Company	has	not	made	any	preferential	allotment	or	private	placement	of	shares	or	fully	
or	partially	or	optionally	convertible	debentures	during	the	year.	Accordingly,	the	reporting	under	
clause	3(x)(b)	of	the	Order	is	not	applicable	to	the	Company.	
	

xi. (a)		During	the	course	of	our	examination	of	the	books	and	records	of	the	Company,	carried	out	in	
accordance	 with	 the	 generally	 accepted	 auditing	 practices	 in	 India,	 and	 according	 to	 the	
information	and	explanations	given	to	us,	we	have	neither	come	across	any	 instance	of	material	
fraud	by	the	Company	or	on	the	Company,	noticed	or	reported	during	the	year,	nor	have	we	been	
informed	of	any	such	case	by	the	Management.	
(b) During	the	course	of	our	examination	of	the	books	and	records	of	the	Company,	carried	out	in	
accordance	 with	 the	 generally	 accepted	 auditing	 practices	 in	 India,	 and	 according	 to	 the	
information	and	explanations	given	to	us,	a	report	under	Section	143(12)	of	the	Act,	in	Form	ADT-
4,as	prescribed	under	rule	13	of	Companies	(Audit	and	Auditors)	Rules,	2014was	not	required	to	
be	 filed	 with	 the	 Central	 Government.	 Accordingly,	 the	 reporting	 under	 clause	 3(xi)(b)	 of	 the	
Order	is	not	applicable	to	the	Company.	
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(c)	During	the	course	of	our	examination	of	the	books	and	records	of	the	Company	carried	out	in	
accordance	 with	 the	 generally	 accepted	 auditing	 practices	 in	 India,	 and	 according	 to	 the	
information	 and	 explanations	 given	 to	 us,	 and	 as	 represented	 to	 us	 by	 the	 management,	 no	
whistle-blower	complaints	have	been	received	during	the	year	by	the	Company.	Accordingly,	the	
reporting	under	clause	3(xi)(c)	of	the	Order	is	not	applicable	to	the	Company.	
	

xii.  As	the	Company	is	not	a	Nidhi	Company	and	the	Nidhi	Rules,	2014	are	not	applicable	to	it,	the	
reporting	under	clause	3(xii)	of	the	Order	is	not	applicable	to	the	Company.	
 

xiii.  The	 Company	 has	 entered	 into	 transactions	 with	 related	 parties	 in	 compliance	 with	 the	
provisions	of	Section	177	and	188	of	the	Act.	The	details	of	such	related	party	transactions	have	
been	 disclosed	 in	 the	 Standalone	 Financial	 Statements	 as	 required	 under	 Indian	 Accounting	
Standard	24	“Related	Party	Disclosures”	specified	under	Section	133	of	the	Act.	
	
	

xiv. (a)	 In	our	opinion	and	according	to	 the	 information	and	explanation	given	to	us,	 the	Company	
has	an	internal	audit	system	commensurate	with	the	size	and	nature	of	its	business.	
	(b)	The	reports	of	the	Internal	Auditor	for	the	period	under	audit	have	been	considered	by	us.	
	

xv. The	 Company	 has	 not	 entered	 into	 any	 non-cash	 transactions	 with	 its	 directors	 or	 persons	
connected	with	 them.	Accordingly,	 the	 reporting	on	 compliance	with	 the	provisions	of	 Section	
192	of	the	Act	under	clause	3(xv)	of	the	Order	is	not	applicable	to	the	Company. 

xvi.  (a)	The	Company	 is	not	 required	 to	be	registered	under	Section	45-IA	of	 the	Reserve	Bank	of	
India	Act,	1934.	Accordingly,	the	reporting	under	clause	3(xvi)(a)	of	the	Order	is	not	applicable	
to	the	Company.	
(b)	The	Company	has	not	 conducted	non-banking	 financial	 /	housing	 finance	activities	during	
the	year.	Accordingly,	the	reporting	under	clause	3(xvi)(b)	of	the	Order	is	not	applicable	to	the	
Company.		
(c) The	Company	is	not	a	Core	Investment	Company	(CIC)	as	defined	in	the	regulations	made	by	
the	Reserve	Bank	of	India.	Accordingly,	the	reporting	under	clause	3(xvi)(c)	of	the	Order	is	not	
applicable	to	the	Company.  
(d)	Based	on	the	information	and	explanations	provided	by	the	management	of	the	Company,	the	
Group,	as	interpreted	in	accordance	with	Notification	No.	DNBS.	(PD)	219/CGM(US)-2011	dated	
January	5,	2011	issued	by	Reserve	Bank	of	India.,	does	not	have	any	CICs,	which	are	part	of	the	
Group.	We	 have	 not,	 however,	 separately	 evaluated	whether	 the	 information	 provided	 by	 the	
management	is	accurate	and	complete.	Accordingly,	the	reporting	under	clause	3(xvi)(d)	of	the	
Order	is	not	applicable	to	the	Company.	

 
xvii.  The	Company	has	not	incurred	any	cash	losses	in	the	financial	year	or	in	the	immediately	

preceding	financial	year.	
xviii. There	has	been	no	resignation	of	the	statutory	auditors	during	the	year	and	accordingly	the	

reporting	under	clause	3(xviii)	is	not	applicable.	
xix. According	to	the	information	and	explanations	given	to	us	and	on	the	basis	of	the	financial	ratios	

(Also	 refer	 Note	 38	 to	 the	 Standalone	 Financial	 Statements),	 ageing	 and	 expected	 dates	 of	
realisation	 of	 financial	 assets	 and	 payment	 of	 financial	 liabilities,	 other	 information	
accompanying	the	Standalone	Financial	Statements,	our	knowledge	of	the	Board	of	Directors	and	
management	plans	and	based	on	our	examination	of	the	evidence	supporting	the	assumptions,	
nothing	 has	 come	 to	 our	 attention,	 which	 causes	 us	 to	 believe	 that	 any	 material	 uncertainty	
exists	as	on	the	date	of	the	audit	report	that	the	Company	is	not	capable	of	meeting	its	liabilities	
existing	at	the	date	of	Standalone	Balance	Sheet	as	and	when	they	fall	due	within	a	period	of	one	
year	from	the	Standalone	Balance	Sheet	date.	We,	however,	state	that	this	is	not	an	assurance	as	
to	the	future	viability	of	the	Company.	We	further	state	that	our	reporting	is	based	on	the	facts	up	
to	 the	 date	 of	 the	 audit	 report	 and	we	 neither	 give	 any	 guarantee	 nor	 any	 assurance	 that	 all	
liabilities	falling	due	within	a	period	of	one	year	from	the	Standalone	Balance	Sheet	date	will	get	
discharged	by	the	Company	as	and	when	they	fall	due.	
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xx. As	 at	 the	 Standalone	 Balance	 Sheet	 date,	 the	 Company	 does	 not	 have	 any	 amount	 remaining	
unspent	under	Section	135(5)	of	the	Act.	Accordingly,	reporting	under	clause	3(xx)	of	the	Order	
is	not	applicable.	

xxi.  The	reporting	under	clause	3(xxi)	of	the	Order	is	not	applicable	in	respect	of	audit	of	Standalone	
Financial	Statements.	Accordingly,	no	comment	in	respect	of	the	said	clause	has	been	included	in	
this	report.	

	
	

FOR	TAMBI	ASHOK	&	ASSOCIATES	
	 Chartered	Accountants	
	 Firm	Reg.			No.	005301C	

	
	 	
	
	
	 ASHOK	KUMAR	TAMBI	
Place:		JAIPUR		 	 	 	 	 	 	 			 PARTNER	
Date:		30-05-2022	 Membership	No.:	074100	 	 	 	
	
UDIN	No.		22074100AJWAWF9355	
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ANNEXURE	B	to	the	Independent	Auditor’s	Report	of	even	date	on	the	Standalone	Financial	Statements	of	
Vinayak	Polycon	International	Limited	
Report	on	the	Internal	Financial	Controls	under	Clause	(i)	of	Sub-section	3	of	Section	143	of	the	
Companies	Act,	2013	(“the	Act”)	

To	the	Members	of	Vinayak	Polycon	International	Limited	
We	 have	 audited	 the	 internal	 financial	 controls	 over	 financial	 reporting	 of	 Vinayak	 Polycon	
International	 Limited	 (“the	 Company”)	 as	 of	 31stMarch,	 2022	 in	 conjunction	 with	 our	 audit	 of	 the	
financial	statements	of	the	Company	for	the	year	ended	on	that	date.	

Management's	Responsibility	for	Internal	Financial	Controls	

The	Company's	management	is	responsible	for	establishing	and	maintaining	internal	financial	controls	
based	on	the	internal	control	over	financial	reporting	criteria	established	by	the	Company	considering	
the	essential	components	of	internal	control	stated	in	the	Guidance	Note	on	Audit	of	Internal	Financial	
Controls	over	Financial	Reporting	issued	by	the	Institute	of	Chartered	Accountants	of	India.		

These	 responsibilities	 include	 the	 design,	 implementation	 and	 maintenance	 of	 adequate	 internal	
financial	controls	that	were	operating	effectively	 for	ensuring	the	orderly	and	efficient	conduct	of	 its	
business,	including	adherence	to	company's	policies,	the	safeguarding	of	its	assets,	the	prevention	and	
detection	 of	 frauds	 and	 errors,	 the	 accuracy	 and	 completeness	 of	 the	 accounting	 records,	 and	 the	
timely	preparation	of	reliable	financial	information,	as	required	under	the	Act.	

Auditors'	Responsibility	

Our	responsibility	is	to	express	an	opinion	on	the	Company's	internal	financial	controls	over	financial	
reporting	based	on	our	audit.	We	conducted	our	audit	in	accordance	with	the	Guidance	Note	on	Audit	
of	 Internal	 Financial	 Controls	Over	Financial	Reporting	 (the	 “Guidance	Note”)	 and	 the	 Standards	on	
Auditing,	issued	by	ICAI	and	deemed	to	be	prescribed	under	section	143(10)	of	the	Act,	to	the	extent	
applicable	 to	an	audit	of	 internal	 financial	 controls,	both	applicable	 to	an	audit	of	 Internal	Financial	
Controls	and,	both	issued	by	the	Institute	of	Chartered	Accountants	of	India.		
	
Those	Standards	and	 the	Guidance	Note	require	 that	we	comply	with	ethical	 requirements	and	plan	
and	 perform	 the	 audit	 to	 obtain	 reasonable	 assurance	 about	 whether	 adequate	 internal	 financial	
controls	 over	 financial	 reporting	 was	 established	 and	 maintained	 and	 if	 such	 controls	 operated	
effectively	in	all	material	respects.	
	
Our	audit	involves	performing	procedures	to	obtain	audit	evidence	about	the	adequacy	of	the	internal	
financial	 controls	 system	 over	 financial	 reporting	 and	 their	 operating	 effectiveness.	 Our	 audit	 of	
internal	 financial	 controls	 over	 financial	 reporting	 included	 obtaining	 an	 understanding	 of	 internal	
financial	 controls	 over	 financial	 reporting,	 assessing	 the	 risk	 that	 a	 material	 weakness	 exists,	 and	
testing	and	evaluating	the	design	and	operating	effectiveness	of	internal	control	based	on	the	assessed	
risk.	The	procedures	selected	depend	on	the	auditor's	judgement,	including	the	assessment	of	the	risks	
of	material	misstatement	of	the	financial	statements,	whether	due	to	fraud	or	error.	

We	believe	that	the	audit	evidence	we	have	obtained	is	sufficient	and	appropriate	to	provide	a	basis	for	
our	audit	opinion	on	the	Company's	internal	financial	controls	system	over	financial	reporting.	

Meaning	of	Internal	Financial	Controls	over	Financial	Reporting	

A	 Company's	 internal	 financial	 control	 over	 financial	 reporting	 is	 a	 process	 designed	 to	 provide	
reasonable	assurance	 regarding	 the	 reliability	of	 financial	 reporting	and	 the	preparation	of	 financial	
statements	for	external	purposes	in	accordance	with	generally	accepted	accounting	principles.		
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A	Company's	internal	financial	control	over	financial	reporting	includes	those	policies	and	procedures	
that:	

1) pertain	to	the	maintenance	of	records	that,	 in	reasonable	detail,	accurately	and	fairly	reflect	
the	transactions	and	dispositions	of	the	assets	of	the	company;	

2) 	provide	 reasonable	 assurance	 that	 transactions	 are	 recorded	 as	 necessary	 to	 permit	
preparation	 of	 financial	 statements	 in	 accordance	 with	 generally	 accepted	 accounting	
principles,	 and	 that	 receipts	 and	 expenditures	 of	 the	 company	 are	 being	 made	 only	 in	
accordance	with	authorizations	of	management	and	directors	of	the	company;	and	

3) 	provide	 reasonable	 assurance	 regarding	 prevention	 or	 timely	 detection	 of	 unauthorized	
acquisition,	use,	or	disposition	of	 the	Company's	assets	 that	could	have	a	material	effect	on	
the	financial	statements.	

Inherent	Limitations	of	Internal	Financial	Controls	over	Financial	Reporting	

Because	of	the	inherent	limitations	of	internal	financial	controls	over	financial	reporting,	including	the	
possibility	of	collusion	or	improper	management	override	of	controls,	material	misstatements	due	to	
error	 or	 fraud	 may	 occur	 and	 not	 be	 detected.	 Also,	 projections	 of	 any	 evaluation	 of	 the	 internal	
financial	 controls	 over	 financial	 reporting	 to	 future	 periods	 are	 subject	 to	 the	 risk	 that	 the	 internal	
financial	control	over	financial	reporting	may	become	inadequate	because	of	changes	in	conditions,	or	
that	the	degree	of	compliance	with	the	policies	or	procedures	may	deteriorate.	

Opinion	

In	 our	 opinion,	 the	 Company	 has,	 in	 all	 material	 respects,	 judging	 by	 the	 nature	 and	 quantum	 of	
transactions	appearing	in	the	financial	statements,	an	adequate	internal	financial	controls	system	over	
financial	 reporting	 and	 such	 internal	 financial	 controls	 over	 financial	 reporting	 were	 operating	
effectively	 as	 at	 31st	 March,	 2022,	 based	 on	 the	 internal	 control	 over	 financial	 reporting	 criteria	
established	 by	 the	 Company	 considering	 the	 essential	 components	 of	 internal	 control	 stated	 in	 the	
Guidance	Note	on	Audit	of	Internal	Financial	Controls	Over	Financial	Reporting	issued	by	the	Institute	
of	Chartered	Accountants	of	India.	

FOR	TAMBI	ASHOK	&	ASSOCIATES	
	 Chartered	Accountants	
	 Firm	Reg.			No.	005301C	
	
	

	
	 ASHOK	KUMAR	TAMBI	
Place:		JAIPUR		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 PARTNER	
Date:		30-05-2022			 Membership	No.:	074100	 	 	 	 	 	
	
UDIN	No.		22074100AJWAWF9355 
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(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. As at 31st March, 
2022

As at 31st March, 
2021

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets 323.35                    376.52                        
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2A 292.83 341.53
(b) Capital work-in-progress 2B -                           -                               
(c) Financial Assets

(i) Other Non Current Financial Assets 3 27.54 32.71
(d) Other Non-Current Assets 4 2.79                          2.28                              
(e) Deffered Tax Assets 11 0.19                          -                               
Current assets 622.80                    566.56                        
(a) Inventories 5 192.09                      179.32                          
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade Receivables 6 403.12                      348.35                          
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 1.02                          5.87                              
(iii) Other Financial Assets 8 7.93                          7.85                              

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 9 2.22                          5.67                              
(d) Other Current Assets 10 16.42                        19.50                            
Total Assets 946.15                    943.08                        
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY 437.33                    433.12                        
(a) Equity Share Capital 12 308.13                      308.13                          
(b) Other Equity 13 129.20                      124.99                          
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities 28.37                      34.34                          
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 14 -                           3.65                              
(ii) Trade Payable 15 0.01                          0.72                              

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 15A -                           2.23                              
(c) Provisions 16 28.36                        27.74                            
Current liabilities 480.45                    475.62                        
(a) Financial Liabilities 458.45                    464.64                        

(i) Borrowings 17 357.54                      342.84                          
(ii) Trade Payables 18 81.11                        98.17                            
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 19 19.80                        23.63                            

(b) Other Current Liabilities 20 21.11                        10.98                            
(c) Current Tax Liabilitied (Net) 21 0.89                          -                               
Total Equity and Liabilities 946.15                    943.08                        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

For Tambi Ashok & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.: 005301C

CA Ashok Kumar Tambi Bharat Kumar Baid Vikram Baid Shikha Natani
 Partner Managing Director Executive Dircetor 

and CFO
Company Secretary & 

Compliance Officer
Membership No.: 074100

DIN: 00212506 DIN: 00217347
Membership 
No.:45901

Place : Jaipur
Date : 30.05.2022

Significant accounting policies & Notes on  
Financial Statements 1 to 40

VINAYAK POLYCON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Registered Office: 312, Navjeevan Complex, 29, Station Road, Jaipur - 302006

CIN No. L25209RJ2009PLC030620

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022



 

[53] 
 

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22 

 
 
  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Note No.
For the year ended 

31.03.2022
For the year ended 

31.03.2021

REVENUE
Revenue From Operations 22                       1,526.60                       1,154.42 
Other Income 23                              2.11                              2.58 
Total Income                     1,528.71                     1,157.00 
EXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed 24                          938.74                          610.95 
Changes in inventory of finished goods 25                             (8.85)                              9.73 
Employee benefits expense 26                          202.00                          201.35 
Finance costs 27                            25.47                            22.34 
Depreciation and amortization expense 2A                            61.98                            68.61 
Other expenses 28                          306.70                          266.21 
Total expenses                     1,526.04                     1,179.19 
Profit/(loss) before exceptional item and tax                             2.67                         -22.19 

Profit/(loss) before tax                             2.67                         -22.19 
Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 29                              0.89                                 -   
(2) Deferred tax 29                            -2.43                            -2.92 
Profit/(loss) for the period                              4.21                          -19.27 
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (Comprising
Profit(Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the
period)

                            4.21                         -19.27 

Earnings per equity share (After exceptional items)

Basic 30                              0.14                            -0.63 
Diluted 30                              0.14                            -0.63 

Significant accounting policies & Notes on Financial 
Statements 1 to 40

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

For Tambi Ashok & Associates     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors                                    
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.: 005301C

CA Ashok Kumar Tambi                         Bharat Kumar Baid Vikram Baid Shikha Natani

Partner                                           Managing Director Executive Dircetor 
and CFO

Company Secretary 
& Compliance 

OfficerMembership No.: 074100                 DIN: 00212506 DIN: 00217347 Membership 
No.:45901

Place : Jaipur
Date : 30.05.2022

Particulars

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022

VINAYAK POLYCON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Registered Office: 312, Navjeevan Complex, 29, Station Road, Jaipur - 302006

CIN No. L25209RJ2009PLC030620
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A. Equity Share Capital (Amount in Lakhs)

Balance as at April 1, 2020 308.13
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year 0
Balance as at March 31, 2021 308.13
Balance as at April 1, 2021 308.13
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year 0
Balance as at March 31, 2022 308.13

B. Other Equity

 General Reserve  Retained Earnings  TOTAL 

Balance as at April 1, 2020 30.40 113.86 144.26
Profit for the year 0.00 -19.27 -19.27
Reversal of DTA 0.00 0.00 0.00
Balance as at March 31, 2021 30.40 94.59 124.99
Balance as at April 1, 2021 30.40 94.59 124.99
Profit for the year 0.00 4.21 4.21
Reversal of DTA 0.00 0.00 0.00
Balance as at March 31, 2022 30.40 98.80 129.20

For Tambi Ashok & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors                                    
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.: 005301C

CA Ashok Kumar Tambi              Bharat Kumar Baid Vikram Baid Shikha Natani
Partner                                   Managing Director Executive Dircetor and 

CFO
Company Secretary & 

Compliance Officer
Membership No.: 074100           DIN: 00212506 DIN: 00217347 Membership No.:45901

Place : Jaipur
Date : 30.05.2022

 Reserves and Surplus 
Particulars

VINAYAK POLYCON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
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(Amount in Lakhs)

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before exceptional and tax as Statement Profit & Loss 
(Increase in Reserves) 2.67                            -22.19                        
Adjusted for :-

Finance Cost 27.00                          22.34                          
Interest received -0.94                          -1.19                          
Rent Income -                             -                             
Loss/(Profit) on Sale/written off of Fixed Assets -0.24                          -0.39                          
Withdrawl from capital reserve -                             -                             
Depreciation 61.98                          68.61                          

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 90.47                        67.18                        
Adjusted for:-

Increase /( Decrease) in Trade Payables -17.76                        3.75                            
Increase /( Decrease) in Other financial liabilities -3.83                          1.28                            
Increase /( Decrease) in Other current liabilities 10.13                          -0.12                          
Increase /( Decrease) in Provisions (except IT) 0.62                            3.77                            
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Tax Assets (Net) 3.45                            -2.67                          
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory -12.77                        8.51                            
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade receivables -54.77                        12.37                          
(Increase)/Decrease in Others current financial assets 5.09                            8.31                            
(Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets 2.57                            11.11                          

Cash Generated From Operations 23.20                        113.49                      
Net Cash used in Operating Activities Before Exceptional 
Items

23.20                        113.49                      

Less:- Exceptional Items -                             -                             
Cash Generated From Operations 23.20                        113.49                      
Less:- Taxes Paid -                             -                             
Net Cash Flow/(used)From Operating Activites 23.20                        113.49                      

B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Increase) / Decrease in Long Term Loans & Advances -                             -                             
Purchase of Fixed Assets -20.39                        -44.73                        
(Increase)/decrease to CWIP -                             -                             
Proceeds From Sales/written off of Fixed Assets 7.35                            6.00                            
Interest received 0.94                            1.19                            
Rent Income -                             -                             

Net Cash Flow/(used) in Investing Activities -12.10                       -37.54                       

C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Procurement of  Borrowings -3.65                          -4.05                          
Repayment of Borrowings -                             -                             
Net Increase/Decrease in Working Capital Borrowings 14.70                    -48.42                  
Interest paid -27.00                        -22.34                        

Net Cash Flow/(used) From Financing Activities -15.95                       -74.81                       

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalent -4.85                          1.14                            

Opening balance of Cash and Cash Equivalent 5.87                            4.73                            

Closing balance of Cash and Cash Equivalent 1.02                           5.87                           

1 Cash Flow has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Ind AS-7.
2 Previous Year's figures have been recasted/regrouped, wherever necessary, to confirm to the current years' figures.

For Tambi Ashok & Associates         For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.: 005301C

CA Ashok Kumar Tambi                            Bharat Kumar Baid Vikram Baid Shikha Natani
Partner                                       Managing Director Executive Dircetor 

and CFO
Company Secretary 

& Compliance 
OfficerMembership No.: 074100                 DIN: 00212506 DIN: 00217347 Membership 

No.:45901

Place : Jaipur
Date : 30.05.2022

CURRENT YEAR
2021-22
AMOUNT

VINAYAK POLYCON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Registered Office: 312, Navjeevan Complex, 29, Station Road, Jaipur - 302006

CIN No. L25209RJ2009PLC030620

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

PARTICULARS
PREVIOPUS YEAR

2020-21
AMOUNT
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Note 1 - General information and Significant Accounting Policies

Note 1.1 - Background

Note 1.2 - Significant Accounting Policies

I. Basis of preparation and presentation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

(ii) Historical cost convention 

(iii) Current non-current classification 

(iv) Rounding of amounts 

II. Use of estimates, assumption and judgement

III Property, Plant and Equipment
i Recognition and Measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. For this purpose, cost 
includes deemed cost which represents the carrying value of property, plant and equipment. Cost is inclusive of inward freight, non refundable duties and 
taxes and incidental expenses related to acquisition or construction.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

All upgradation / enhancements are charged off as revenue expenditure unless they bring similar significant additional benefits. 

(iii) Contingencies
Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company 
as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

(iv) Employee benefit expenses
Actuarial valuation for gratuity liability of the Company has been done by an independent actuarial valuer on the basis of data provided by the management 
and assumptions used by the actuary. The data so provided and the assumptions used have been disclosed in the notes to accounts.

(v) Discounting of Security deposit, and other long term liabilities
For majority of the security deposits received, the timing of outflow, as mentioned in the underlying contracts, is not ascertainable or is not substantially long 
enough to discount. The treatment would not provide any meaningful information and would have no material impact on the financial statements. 

VINAYAK POLYCON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Vinayak Polycon International Limited (the Company) is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956. The company were demerged from Polycon International Limited, a listed company also domiciled in India under the Demerger Scheme approved by 
the Honourable High Court of Rajasthan, Jaipur Bench vide Order Dated 21/07/2011. 

Presently the Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of PET Items like PET Bottles, PET Jars, PET Preforms, PP Caps and Lids etc. 
Its manufacturing facilities are located at Chennai and Jaipur. 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2016 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022 are prepared with comparatives under Ind AS.
The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
 1) certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;
2) assets held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell; 
3) defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value; 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle (twelve months) and other criteria set out 
in the Schedule III to the Act.

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless 
otherwise stated.

The preparation  of the financial statements in conformity with recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires the Management to make 
estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and 
expenses during the year. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in future are:

(i) Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment properties : 
Useful life and residual value are determined by the management based on a technical evaluation considering nature of asset, past experience, estimated 
usage of the asset, vendor's advice etc and same is reviewed at each financial year end.

(ii) Deferred tax assets : 
The Company has reviewed the carrying amount of deferred tax assets including MAT credit at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that 
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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ii. Capital work-in-progress

IV Depreciation / amortisation

i.
ii.

iii. Freehold Land is not depreciated.
iv.

V Leases

VI Cash and Cash Equivalents 

VII Inventories

VIII Financial Instruments
A.  Initial recognition

B. Subsequent measurement

De-recognition of financial Asset

De-recognition of financial liability

A financial asset is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the balance sheet) when: 
• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

• The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without 
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the 
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what 
extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. 

(ii) Financial assets carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): A financial asset is subsequently measured at FVTOCI if it is 
held not only for collection of cash flows arising from payments of principal and interest but also from the sale of such assets. Such assets are subsequently 
measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value being recognised in other comprehensive income.

(iv) Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are 

subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss.
(v) Financial liabilities : Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables 
maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of 
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Depreciation of these assets commences when the assets are ready for their intended use which is generally on commissioning. 

Projects under which tangible fixed assets are not yet ready for their intended use are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses.

The Company is following the written down value method of depreciation in respect of Property, plant and equipment.
Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated in a manner that amortizes the cost (or other amount substituted for cost) of the assets after 
commissioning, less its residual value, over their useful lives as specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 on a written down value basis. 

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value.

Lease payments under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless 
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the Company’s benefit. 
Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, 
such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. 
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial lease transactions entered are considered as financial arrangements and the leased assets are capitalised on an amount equal to the present value 
of future lease payments and corresponding amount is recognised as a liability. The lease payments made are apportioned between finance charge and 
reduction of outstanding liability in relation to leased asset.

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, bank overdraft with original maturities of 
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

Raw Materials: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is 
determined on first in first out basis.

Finished Goods and Work in Progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of fixed manufacturing overheads based on the 
normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on first in first out basis.

Traded Goods: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined 
on first in first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make 
the sale.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of 
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from 
the fair value of financial asset or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost : A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held in order to collect contractual cash 
flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.
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Offsetting of financial instruments 

C. Impairment

(i) Financial assets

(ii) Non - financial assets
Tangible and intangible assets

IX Segment Reporting

Factors used to identify segments

X Borrowing costs

XI Contingent liabilities and provisions

XII Revenue recognition

XIII Employee Benefits

(i) Short-term obligations

(ii) Post-employment obligations

Gratuity obligations

The Company has various schemes of employee benefits such as provident fund, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity and Compensated Absences, 
which are dealt with as under:

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in 
which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the 
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
(a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and
(b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund and Family pension funds.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end 
of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit 
method.

Sale of goods : - Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customer, which generally coincides 
when the products are dispatched / shipped, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing 
management involvement with the goods nor it exercises effective control over the goods and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts, cash discounts and volume rebates. 
Sales includes excise duty but excludes sales tax / value added tax/goods and service tax.

Income from services :-  Revenue from sale of services are recognised when services are rendered and related costs are incurred.

Other income : - Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the Company and the amount 
of income can be measured reliably. interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective rate applicable, 
which is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial assets to that asset's net carrying amount on initial 
recognition. Rent income is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured 
reliably. Rent income is accrued as per terms of contracts.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of 
a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss as "Other Income" or 
"Finance Expense".

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset 
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss for the financial assets which are not measured at fair value through profit or loss. 
Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss.

Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems them not to be collectible. 

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be 
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is 
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for 
which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating 
units). The Company reviews/assesses at each reporting date if there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

The Company is engaged in manufacture and sale of PET and other plastic products which constitutes a single business segment.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial 
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their 
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed after evaluation of the facts and legal aspects of the matter involved, in line with the provisions of Ind AS 37. 

The company records a liability for any claims where a potential loss probable and capable of being estimated and discloses such matters in its financial 
statements, if material. For potential losses that are considered possible, but not probable, the Company provides disclosures in the financial statements but 
does not record a liability in its financial statements unless the loss becomes probable.

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal / constructive obligation as a result of a past event, for which it is probable that a cash outflow may 
be required and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows 
(when the effect of the time value of money is material).
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Defined Contribution Plans

XIV Foreign Currency Transactions
(i) Functional and presentation currency

(ii) Transactions and balances

XV Income taxes

XVI Earnings Per Share 
Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share 

XVII Operating Cycle

XVIII Government Grants

XIX Statement of cash flows

XX

Cash flows are reported using the method as prescribed in Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash flows', where by net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expense associated 
with investing or financial cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Investments
Investments, if any, are to be valued at fair value.

Defined Contribution Plans such as Provident Fund etc., are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. 

Liability on account of short term employee benefits, comprising largely of compensated absences and bonus, is recognised on an undiscounted accrual basis 
during the period when the employee renders service.

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognised at the prevailing exchange rates on the transaction dates. Realised gains and losses on settlement of foreign 
currency transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end exchange rates and the resultant exchange differences are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by 
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amount in the financial statement. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by 
the end of the reporting period and are excepted to apply when the related deferred income tax assets is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses, only if, it is probable that future taxable amounts will be 
available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax 
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where the Company has a legally forcible right to offset and 
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal 
income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to 
the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account the after income tax effect of interest 
and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been 
outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash 
equivalents, the Company determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply 
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to 
Profit and Loss on a straight - line basis over the expected lives of related assets and presented within other income.



 

[60] 
 

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22 

 

N
ot

e 
2

(A
) P

ro
pe

rt
y,

 P
la

n
t 

&
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t

P
ar

ti
cu

la
rs

F
re

eh
ol

d 
La

n
d

F
ac

to
ry

 
B

u
il

di
n

g
P

la
n

t 
an

d 
M

ac
h

in
er

y
E

le
ct

ri
c 

In
st

al
la

ti
on

O
ff

ic
e 

E
qu

ip
m

en
ts

F
u

rn
it

u
re

 
an

d 
F

ix
tu

re
s

V
eh

ic
le

s
C

om
pu

te
rs

M
ou

ld
s 

&
 

D
ie

s
T

ot
al

G
ro

ss
 C

ar
ry

in
g 

A
m

ou
n

t
A

s 
at

 A
pr

il
 1

, 2
0

2
0

1
3

.8
3

1
3

2
.6

5
7

6
6

.6
1

2
9

.9
1

3
.4

6
6

.9
3

4
0

.0
5

7
.8

0
4

2
1

.5
5

1
4

2
2

.7
9

A
dd

it
io

n
s

   
   

   
  3

6.
73

 
   

   
   

   
8.

00
 

4
4

.7
3

(D
is

po
sa

ls
)

   
  (

1
4

8
.3

0
)

   
   

   
(1

4
8

.3
0

)

A
s 

at
 M

ar
ch

 3
1

, 2
0

2
1

1
3

.8
3

1
3

2
.6

5
8

0
3

.3
4

2
9

.9
1

3
.4

6
6

.9
3

4
0

.0
5

7
.8

0
2

8
1

.2
5

1
3

1
9

.2
2

A
s 

at
 A

pr
il

 1
, 2

0
2

1
1

3
.8

3
1

3
2

.6
5

8
0

3
.3

4
2

9
.9

1
3

.4
6

6
.9

3
4

0
.0

5
7

.8
0

2
8

1
.2

5
1

3
1

9
.2

2
A

dd
it

io
n

s
   

   
   

  1
8.

20
 

   
   

   
   

   
 1

.1
4 

   
   

   
   

   
 1

.0
5 

   
   

   
   

   
- 

  
20

.3
9

(D
is

po
sa

ls
)

   
   

   
(2

0
.9

1
)

   
   

   
   

   
- 

  
   

   
   

  (
2

0
.9

1
)

A
s 

at
 M

ar
ch

 3
1

, 2
0

2
2

1
3

.8
3

1
3

2
.6

5
8

0
0

.6
3

2
9

.9
1

4
.6

0
6

.9
3

4
0

.0
5

8
.8

5
2

8
1

.2
5

1
3

1
8

.7
0

A
cc

u
m

u
la

te
d 

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
A

s 
at

 A
pr

il
 1

, 2
0

2
0

   
   

   
   

 -
   

   
   

9
2

.6
8

 
   

   
  5

8
3

.4
6

 
   

   
   

  2
6

.1
8

 
   

   
   

   
   

3
.3

5
 

   
   

   
 6

.4
1

 
   

   
2

2
.4

6
 

   
   

   
   

   
7

.4
4

 
   

   
3

0
9

.7
9

 
   

   
1

,0
5

1
.7

7
 

A
dd

it
io

n
s 

   
   

   
 3

.7
6 

   
   

   
  3

8.
46

 
   

   
   

   
  0

.7
5 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 -
   

   
   

   
  0

.1
0 

   
   

   
5.

83
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 -
   

   
   

   
 1

9.
71

 
   

   
   

   
 6

8.
61

 
(D

is
po

sa
ls

)
   

  (
1

4
2

.6
9

)
   

   
   

(1
4

2
.6

9
)

A
s 

at
 M

ar
ch

 3
1

, 2
0

2
1

   
   

   
   

 -
   

   
   

9
6

.4
4

 
   

   
  6

2
1

.9
2

 
   

   
   

  2
6

.9
3

 
   

   
   

   
   

3
.3

5
 

   
   

   
 6

.5
1

 
   

   
2

8
.2

9
 

   
   

   
   

   
7

.4
4

 
   

   
1

8
6

.8
1

 
   

   
   

 9
7

7
.6

9
 

A
s 

at
 A

pr
il

 1
, 2

0
2

1
   

   
9

6
.4

4
 

   
   

  6
2

1
.9

2
 

   
   

   
  2

6
.9

3
 

   
   

   
   

   
3

.3
5

 
   

   
   

 6
.5

1
 

   
   

2
8

.2
9

 
   

   
   

   
   

7
.4

4
 

   
   

1
8

6
.8

1
 

   
   

   
 9

7
7

.6
9

 
A

dd
it

io
n

s 
   

   
   

 3
.4

0 
   

   
   

  3
7.

30
 

   
   

   
   

  0
.5

7 
   

   
   

   
   

 0
.0

8 
   

   
   

  0
.0

5 
   

   
   

3.
79

 
   

   
   

   
   

 0
.2

3 
   

   
   

 1
6.

56
 

   
   

   
   

 6
1.

98
 

(D
is

po
sa

ls
)

   
   

   
(1

3
.8

0
)

   
   

   
   

   
- 

  
   

   
   

  (
1

3
.8

0
)

A
s 

at
 M

ar
ch

 3
1

, 2
0

2
2

   
   

9
9

.8
4

 
   

   
  6

4
5

.4
2

 
   

   
   

  2
7

.5
0

 
   

   
   

   
   

3
.4

3
 

   
   

   
 6

.5
6

 
   

   
3

2
.0

8
 

   
   

   
   

   
7

.6
7

 
   

   
2

0
3

.3
7

 
   

   
1

,0
2

5
.8

7
 

N
et

 c
ar

ry
in

g 
am

ou
n

t
A

s 
at

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

02
1

   
   

  1
3.

83
 

   
   

  3
6.

21
 

   
   

   
18

1.
42

 
   

   
   

   
  2

.9
8 

   
   

   
   

   
 0

.1
1 

   
   

   
  0

.4
2 

   
   

 1
1.

76
 

   
   

   
   

   
 0

.3
6 

   
   

   
 9

4.
44

 
   

   
   

 3
4

1
.5

3
 

A
s 

at
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

2
   

   
  1

3.
83

 
   

   
  3

2.
81

 
   

   
   

15
5.

21
 

   
   

   
   

  2
.4

1 
   

   
   

   
   

 1
.1

7 
   

   
   

  0
.3

7 
   

   
   

7.
97

 
   

   
   

   
   

 1
.1

8 
   

   
   

 7
7.

88
 

   
   

   
 2

9
2

.8
3

 

N
ot

e 
2

(B
) C

A
P

IT
A

L 
W

O
R

K
 I

N
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S

P
ar

ti
cu

la
rs

A
s 

at
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

1
   

   
   

   
 -

   
   

   
   

   
 -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

 -
   

   
   

   
   

   
- 

  
   

   
   

   
 -

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 -

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

 -
   

A
s 

at
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

2
   

   
   

   
 -

   
   

   
   

   
 -

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

 -
   

   
   

   
   

   
- 

  
   

   
   

   
 -

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 -

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

 -
   

(A
m

ou
nt

 in
 L

ak
hs

)



 

[61] 
 

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22 

 
  

Note 3 Other Non-Current Financial Assets

 As at 31st 
March, 2022 

 As at 31st 
March, 2021 

1 Advance to employees
2 Security Deposits 27.54 32.71

27.54                32.71                 

Note 4 Other Non-Current Assets

As at 31st 
March, 2022

As at 31st 
March, 2021

1 Advances against Goods supply/ Expenses 2.79 2.28
2.79                   2.28                   

Note 5 Inventories

As at 31st 
March, 2022

As at 31st 
March, 2021

1 Raw Material   137.02 133.85
2 Stores, Spares and Consumables 10.85 10.25
3 Packing Material 3.65 3.50
4 Finished Goods 40.57 31.72

192.09              179.32              
5.1 For basis of valuation of Inventories, refer to Note No. 1.2 VII
5.2 Inventories shown above are hypothecated to short term borrowings (Refer to Note No. 17)

Note 6 Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars 

TOTAL

Particulars 

TOTAL

Particulars 

TOTAL

        

Particulars  Not due  

 Outstanding for the year ended 31.03.2022 from the due 
date of payment   Total  

 Less 
than 6 
months  

 
6months- 

1year  

 1-2 years   2-3 
years  

 More than 
3 years   

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good 

  377.70 2.03 13.22 3.25 6.92 403.12 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
Which have significant increase in 
credit risk 

                       
-    

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables – 
credit impaired 

                       
-    

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables 
considered good 

                       
-    

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – 
Which have significant increase in 
credit risk 

                       
-    

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables – 
credit impaired 

                       
-    

Total - 377.70 2.03 13.22 3.25 6.92 403.12 

    

      

Particulars  Not due  

 Outstanding for the year ended 31.03.2021 from the due 
date of payment   Total  

 Less 
than 6 
months  

 
6months- 

1year  

 1-2 years   2-3 
years  

 More than 
3 years   

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good 

  279.60 53.78 8.05  6.92 348.35 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
Which have significant increase in 
credit risk 

                       
-    

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables – 
credit impaired 

                       
-    

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables 
considered good 

                       
-    

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – 
Which have significant increase in 
credit risk 

                       
-    

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables – 
credit impaired 

                       
-    

Total - 279.60 53.78 8.05 - 6.92 348.35 
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6.1

6.2

Note 7 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 As at 31st 
March, 2022 

 As at 31st 
March, 2021 

1 Cash in Hand 0.58 4.11
2 Bank Balances 0.44 1.76

1.02                   5.87                   

Note 8 Others Current Financial Assets

 As at 31st 
March, 2022 

 As at 31st 
March, 2021 

1 Advance to employees 7.93 7.85
7.93                   7.85                   

Note 9 Current Tax Assets (Net)

 As at 31st 
March, 2022 

 As at 31st 
March, 2021 

Advance Tax 2.22                    5.67                    
Less: MAT Credit Entitlement 
Less:Provision for Income Tax -                      

2.22                   5.67                   

Note 10 Other Current Assets

 As at 31st 
March, 2022 

 As at 31st 
March, 2021 

1 Prepaid Expenses 4.79 3.76
2 Balance with Excise/Sales Tax/Service Tax 11.63 12.26
3 Advances against Goods supply/ Expenses -                     -                      
4 Advance against Capital Goods 0 3.48

16.42                19.50                 

Note 11 Deffered Tax Assets (Net)

 As at 31st 
March, 2022 

 As at 31st 
March, 2021 

1 Deferred tax Assets (Net) 0.19                    -                      
0.19                   -                     

Particulars 

TOTAL

Particulars 

TOTAL

Particulars 

TOTAL

Particulars 

TOTAL

Particulars 

TOTAL

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or 
jointly with any other person, from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a 
partner, a director or a member except as mentioned in Note 31. Trade receivables are non-interest 
bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days. Refer to Note No. 33 for information about credit risk 
and market risk of trade receivables.

The above trade receiveables are hypothecated to secured short term borrowings (Refer to Note No. 17)

Note 12 Equity Share Capital (Amount in Lakhs)

 As at 31st 
March, 2022 

 As at 31st 
March, 2021 

Share Capital
1 Authorised :

32,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 325.00                325.00                  
(Previous Year 32,50,000 Equity shares of 10/- each)

2 Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up
30,81,295 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 308.13                308.13                  
(Previous Year 30,81,295 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each)

308.13              308.13                

Particulars 

TOTAL
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(a) Rights, Preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares

(b) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year : (Amount in Lakhs)

No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 30,81,295          308.13            30,81,295              308.13            
Add: Issued during the year -                    -                 -                         -                 
Less: Bought Back during the year -                    -                 -                         -                 

At the end of the year 30,81,295       308.13 30,81,295            308.13

(c) Details of Shareholding Pattern of Promoters and Sharholder holding more than 5% is as under: 

% Change 
during the 

year 

 No. of Shares   % of Total Shares   No. of Shares   % of Total Shares  

Promoters 
Jai Sinter Polycon Private Limited 354950 11.52% 354950 11.52% 0.00%
Vikram Baid 323169 10.49% 323169 10.49% 0.00%
Bharat Kumar Baid 288046 9.35% 288046 9.35% 0.00%
Rajiv Baid 244148 7.92% 244148 7.92% 0.00%
Bharat Kumar Baid(HUF) 167134 5.42% 167134 5.42% 0.00%

Other than Promoters 
Sankalp Granites Private Limited 323169 10.49% 323169 10.49% 0.00%
SIGO Polymers (P) Ltd 182714 5.93% 182714 5.93% 0.00%
Maratha Petrochemicals (P) Ltd 180854 5.87% 180854 5.87% 0.00%

Comparative Figures : 
% Change 
during the 

year 

 No. of Shares   % of Total Shares   No. of Shares   % of Total Shares  

Promoters 
Jai Sinter Polycon Private Limited 354950 11.52% 354950 11.52% 0.00%
Vikram Baid 323169 10.49% 323169 10.49% 0.00%
Bharat Kumar Baid 288046 9.35% 288046 9.35% 0.00%
Rajiv Baid 244148 7.92% 244148 7.92% 0.00%
Bharat Kumar Baid(HUF) 167134 5.42% 167134 5.42% 0.00%

Other than Promoters 
Sankalp Granites Private Limited 323169 10.49% 323169 10.49% 0.00%
SIGO Polymers (P) Ltd 182714 5.93% 182714 5.93% 0.00%
Maratha Petrochemicals (P) Ltd 180854 5.87% 180854 5.87% 0.00%

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 2022 

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled 
to one vote per share. All equity shareholders rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the company's residual 
assets.The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing 
AGM

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
company, after distribution of all prefrential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held 
by the shareholder.

The Company has not allotted any fully paid up equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any class of equity shares during the period of 
5 years immediately preceding the balance sheet date.

 As at 31st March, 2021 

31st March 2020

31st March 202131st March 2022

31st March 2021

Name of Share Holders 

Name of Share Holders 
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Note 13 Other Equity (Amount in Lakhs)

As at 31st 
March, 2022

As at 31st 
March, 2021

Reserves and Surplus

1 General Reserve
At the beginning of the year 30.40                  30.40                    
Add; Additions during the year -                     -                       
Less: withdrawals/transfer -                     -                       
Balance at the year end 30.40                30.40                  

2 Surplus
At the beginning of the year 94.59                  113.86                  
Add: Profit for the Year 4.21                    -19.27                  

Balance at the year end 98.80                94.59                  

129.20              124.99                

Note 14 Non Current Financial Borrowings

As at 31st 
March, 2022

As at 31st 
March, 2021

Term Loan
Secured - Car Loan from HDFC Bank 3.65                    7.70                      
COVID-19 BOB Loan 14.18                  47.50                    
Unsecured
Total 17.83                55.20                  
Less : Current maturities of long term borrowings 17.83 51.55

-                     3.65                     
14.1
14.2
14.3

Note 15 Non Current Trade Payables

 As at 31st 
March, 2022 

 As at 31st 
March, 2021 

Secured 
-                     -                       

Unsecured
Creditors for Capital Goods & expenses 0.01                    0.72                      

0.01                   0.72                     

Note 15A Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

As at 31st 
March, 2022

As at 31st 
March, 2021

1 Deferred tax liabilities (Net) -0.19                  2.23                      
-0.19                 2.23                     

Note 16 Provisions

As at 31st 
March, 2022

As at 31st 
March, 2021

Provison for Gratuity 28.36                  27.74                    
28.36                27.74                  

Particulars 

TOTAL

TOTAL

The COVID-19 Loan from BoB is secured by personal guarantee of 2 directors of the company and exclusive 
first charge by way of Hypothecation of entire existing and proposed plant and machinary, electrical 
installations, furniture and fixtures, office equipments and other movable fixed assets of the company 
located at and including factory land and building at RS No. 119/1B1A7 (Part) 16, Pandur Village, 
Chingalper Talluk, Dist. Kanchipuram, Tamil Nadu (Admeasuting 6278.33 Sqm) in the name of the 
company. It is payable in 18 instalments, 6 of 1,25,000 each and 12 of 3,54,000. The rate of interest at 
present is 7.00% (BRLLR @6.75% + 0.25%)

Particulars 

TOTAL

Particulars 

 Vehicle loan (including current maturities) is secured by hypothecation of the vehicle.
There is no delay in repayment of principal or interest of any loan on due date

TOTAL

Particulars 

TOTAL

Particulars 
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Note 17 Current Borrowings

As at 31st 
March, 2022

As at 31st 
March, 2021

Loan payable on demand from Banks :
Secured

1 Bank of Baroda
     a. Cash Credit Account 339.71                291.29                  
     b. Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings 17.83 51.55

357.54              342.84                

Refer Note No 33 for information about credit risk and market risk for loans.

Note 18 Trade Payables Ageing Schedule

Note 19 Other Current Financial Liabilities

As at 31st 
March, 2022

As at 31st 
March, 2021

Payable on account of Capital Goods 0.02                    2.26                      
Provision for Expenses 12.79                  14.27                    
Provision for Labour Wage 3.59                    3.82                      
Provison for Staff Salary 3.40                    3.28                      

19.80 23.63

Cash Credit facilities from Bank of Baroda together with interest and other charges thereon, is secured 
by mortgage of Company's land and building together with other immovable assets thereon both 
present and future and by way of a hypothecation charge over all movable assets including book debts 
of the company and secured by personal guarantee of two directors of the company. Cash Credit is 
payable on demand and carries interest rate @ 7.95% p.a. on monthly rest.

Particulars 

TOTAL

Particulars 

TOTAL

Particulars 

Not 
Due 

 Outstanding for the year ended 
31.03.2022 from the due date of payment   TOTAL  

  
 Less 

than 1 
year  

 1-2 years   2-3 
years  

 More than 
3 years    

(i) MSME                       -    
(ii) Others  81.11    81.11 

(iii) Disputed dues- MSME                       -    
(iv) Disputed dues- Others                       -    

Total - 81.11 - - - 81.11 
        

Particulars 

Not 
Due 

 Outstanding for the year ended 
31.03.2021 from the due date of payment   TOTAL  

  
 Less 

than 1 
year  

 1-2 years   2-3 
years  

 More than 
3 years    

(i) MSME                       -    
(ii) Others  97.46  0.71  98.17 

(iii) Disputed dues- MSME                       -    
(iv) Disputed dues- Others                       -    

Total - 97.46 - 0.71 - 98.17 
 

      

(Amount in Rs. 
Lakhs) 

Nature of Statement given to 
Bank 

Quarter 
Ending 

Nature of 
Amount/ 
Account 

Amount 
Reported 

in the 
quarterly 

return/ 
statement  

 Amount 
as per 

books of 
Accounts   

 Amount 
of 

Difference   

 Reasons of 
material 

discrepancies  

Bokk Debts and Stock in Trade 30-Jun-21 Cash Credit 333.22 281.63 51.59  

Bokk Debts and Stock in Trade 30-Sep-21 Cash Credit 436.37 473.34 (36.97)  

Bokk Debts and Stock in Trade 31-Dec-21 Cash Credit 528.62 519.96 8.66  

Bokk Debts and Stock in Trade 31-Mar-22 Cash Credit 494.87 492.97 1.90  
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Note 20 Other Current Liabilities

As at 31st 
March, 2022

As at 31st 
March, 2021

Statutory Liabilities:
TDS Payable 1.69                    2.71                      
CGST Payable 4.22                    0.11                      
SGST Payable 8.52                    1.07                      
IGST Payable -                     -                       
PF Payable 1.42                    1.33                      
Advance from Customers 5.26                    5.76                      

21.11                10.98                  

Note 21 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

As at 31st 
March, 2022

As at 31st 
March, 2021

Provosion For Tax 0.89
Less: MAT Credit Entitlement 
Less:Advance Tax Paid

0.89                   -                       

Particulars 

TOTAL

Particulars 

TOTAL

Note 22 Revenue From Operations (Amount in Lakhs)

For the year ended 
31.03.2022

For the year ended 
31.03.2021

(a) Sale of products*
Finished Goods 1526.60 1154.42

1,526.60                    1,154.42                    

Note 23 Other Income

For the year ended 
31.03.2022

For the year ended 
31.03.2021

Interest Received 0.94 1.19
Interest on Income Tax Refund 0.50 0.00
Excess Income Tax Provision W/off 0.43
Liabilities no longer required to be paid 0.00 1.00
Gain on sale of Fixed Assets 0.24 0.39

                            2.11                             2.58 

Note 24 Cost of Material Consumed

Particulars For the year ended 
31.03.2022

For the year ended 
31.03.2021

A Raw Material Consumed
Raw Material
Opening Stock 133.85 135.89
Add: Purchases 940.56 603.08

                    1,074.41                        738.97 
Less: Closing Stock 137.02 133.85

                       937.39                        605.12 

B Packing Material 1.35 5.83
TOTAL                        938.74                        610.95 

Note 25 Changes in inventories of Finished Goods

Particulars For the year ended 
31.03.2022

For the year ended 
31.03.2021

Finished Goods at the beginning of the year 31.72 41.45
Finished Goods at the end of the year 40.57 31.72

INCREASE/(DECREASE)                            -8.85                             9.73 

Note 26 Employee benefits expense

Particulars For the year ended 
31.03.2022

For the year ended 
31.03.2021

Salaries,Wages and Incentive 187.39 185.30
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 8.13 8.20
Staff welfare Expenses 6.48 7.85

202.00                       201.35                       

Particulars

TOTAL

Particulars

TOTAL

TOTAL

* The above amount excludes Rs. 122.36 Lakhs which is the amount of Goods and Services sold by Jaipur Unit to Chennai Unit for the year  
2021-22.The above amount excludes Rs. 1.33 and Rs. 49.06 Lakhs which is the amount of Goods and Services sold by Chennai Unit to Jaipur 
unit and Jaipur Unit to Chennai Unit respectively for the year 2020-21. The figure is also net of Trade discounts, if any, allowed to buyers.
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Note 22 Revenue From Operations (Amount in Lakhs)

For the year ended 
31.03.2022

For the year ended 
31.03.2021

(a) Sale of products*
Finished Goods 1526.60 1154.42

1,526.60                    1,154.42                    

Note 23 Other Income

For the year ended 
31.03.2022

For the year ended 
31.03.2021

Interest Received 0.94 1.19
Interest on Income Tax Refund 0.50 0.00
Excess Income Tax Provision W/off 0.43
Liabilities no longer required to be paid 0.00 1.00
Gain on sale of Fixed Assets 0.24 0.39

                            2.11                             2.58 

Note 24 Cost of Material Consumed

Particulars For the year ended 
31.03.2022

For the year ended 
31.03.2021

A Raw Material Consumed
Raw Material
Opening Stock 133.85 135.89
Add: Purchases 940.56 603.08

                    1,074.41                        738.97 
Less: Closing Stock 137.02 133.85

                       937.39                        605.12 

B Packing Material 1.35 5.83
TOTAL                        938.74                        610.95 

Note 25 Changes in inventories of Finished Goods

Particulars For the year ended 
31.03.2022

For the year ended 
31.03.2021

Finished Goods at the beginning of the year 31.72 41.45
Finished Goods at the end of the year 40.57 31.72

INCREASE/(DECREASE)                            -8.85                             9.73 

Note 26 Employee benefits expense

Particulars For the year ended 
31.03.2022

For the year ended 
31.03.2021

Salaries,Wages and Incentive 187.39 185.30
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 8.13 8.20
Staff welfare Expenses 6.48 7.85

202.00                       201.35                       

Particulars

TOTAL

Particulars

TOTAL

TOTAL

* The above amount excludes Rs. 122.36 Lakhs which is the amount of Goods and Services sold by Jaipur Unit to Chennai Unit for the year  
2021-22.The above amount excludes Rs. 1.33 and Rs. 49.06 Lakhs which is the amount of Goods and Services sold by Chennai Unit to Jaipur 
unit and Jaipur Unit to Chennai Unit respectively for the year 2020-21. The figure is also net of Trade discounts, if any, allowed to buyers.

Note 27 Finance Costs

Particulars For the year ended 
31.03.2022

For the year ended 
31.03.2021

Interest Expenses 22.92 19.98
Other Borrowing Costs 2.55 2.36

25.47                          22.34                          

Note 28 Other expenses

For the year ended 
31.03.2022

For the year ended 
31.03.2021

Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts 30.04 16.94
Electricity and Fuel Charges 145.86 137.63
Payment to Auditors as Auditors- Statutory and GST Audit 0.65 0.40
Repair and Maintenance
Plant and Machinery 3.14 4.82
Building 1.66 0.90
Moulds 5.00 0.09
Others 3.73 5.46
Tour and Travelling
Domestic 5.35 2.52
Foreign - -
Postage, Telegraph and Telephone 0.91 0.85
Insurance 4.28 4.22
Listing Expenses & Professional Fees 4.98 4.66
Fee and Subscriptions 1.31 0.28
Vehicle and Maintenance 0.37 0.28
Printing and Stationary 0.65 0.29
Government Dues and Fee 0.94 0.29
Rates and Taxes 0.01 0.65
Advertisement Expenses 0.47 0.55
Transportation, Handling and Octroi(net) 58.81 43.51
Rent 8.58 8.58
Machine Rent 21.00 22.25
Factory Rent 5.52 6.77
Gratuity 2.53 3.77
Miscellanenous Expenses 0.91 0.50

306.70                       266.21                       

Particulars

TOTAL

TOTAL

Note 29 Tax Expenses

Tax expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

For the year ended 
31.03.2022

For the year ended 
31.03.2021

Current Tax on taxable income for the year (Net of MAT Credit) 0.89 0.00
Total Current Tax expense 0.89                            -                              

Deferred Tax 
Deferred Tax charge/(credit) -2.43 -2.92
Total Deferred Income Tax expense/(benefit) (2.43)                           (2.92)                           

Tax in respect of earlier years
Total tax expense (1.54)                           (2.92)                           

Particulars For the year ended 
31.03.2022

For the year ended 
31.03.2021

Profit as per AS 2.67 -22.19
Ind AS Adjustments (before tax) -                              -                              
Net Income before taxes 2.67 -22.19
Applicable Tax Rate* 26% 26%
Computed Tax Expense 0.69                            -5.77                           
Increase/decrease in taxes on account of :
Gratuity 0.16 0.98
Brought forward Depreciation Loss -2.14 0.00
Gain on Sale of Machine -0.06
Depreciation as per Income Tax Act -13.79 -15.19
Depreciation as per Companies Act 16.11 17.84
Others -0.08
Computed Income Tax Expense 0.89 -2.14 
Less: MAT Credit Entitlement -                              -                              
Income Tax Expense Reported 0.89 0.00

Deferred Tax Assets (Liabilities)

Particulars  For the year ended 
31.03.2022 

 For the year ended 
31.03.2021 

 Deferred Tax Asset 
 Property, Plant and Equipment -7.18 -9.44
 Gratuity 7.37 7.21

TOTAL 0.19 -2.23
Net Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset) to be created for the Year -0.19 2.23

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

Particulars
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Note 29 Tax Expenses

Tax expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

For the year ended 
31.03.2022

For the year ended 
31.03.2021

Current Tax on taxable income for the year (Net of MAT Credit) 0.89 0.00
Total Current Tax expense 0.89                            -                              

Deferred Tax 
Deferred Tax charge/(credit) -2.43 -2.92
Total Deferred Income Tax expense/(benefit) (2.43)                           (2.92)                           

Tax in respect of earlier years
Total tax expense (1.54)                           (2.92)                           

Particulars For the year ended 
31.03.2022

For the year ended 
31.03.2021

Profit as per AS 2.67 -22.19
Ind AS Adjustments (before tax) -                              -                              
Net Income before taxes 2.67 -22.19
Applicable Tax Rate* 26% 26%
Computed Tax Expense 0.69                            -5.77                           
Increase/decrease in taxes on account of :
Gratuity 0.16 0.98
Brought forward Depreciation Loss -2.14 0.00
Gain on Sale of Machine -0.06
Depreciation as per Income Tax Act -13.79 -15.19
Depreciation as per Companies Act 16.11 17.84
Others -0.08
Computed Income Tax Expense 0.89 -2.14 
Less: MAT Credit Entitlement -                              -                              
Income Tax Expense Reported 0.89 0.00

Deferred Tax Assets (Liabilities)

Particulars  For the year ended 
31.03.2022 

 For the year ended 
31.03.2021 

 Deferred Tax Asset 
 Property, Plant and Equipment -7.18 -9.44
 Gratuity 7.37 7.21

TOTAL 0.19 -2.23
Net Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset) to be created for the Year -0.19 2.23

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

Particulars

Note 30 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(in number)

Particulars
For the year ended 

31.03.2022
For the year ended 

31.03.2021
Issued  number equity shares                                  30,81,295                                  30,81,295 
Potential Equity Shares                                              -                                                -   
Weighted average shares outstanding -
Basic and Diluted 

                              30,81,295                               30,81,295 

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
31.03.2022

For the year ended 
31.03.2021

Profit and loss after tax 4.21 -19.27 
Profit and loss after tax for EPS 4.21 -19.27 
Basic Earnings per share (in Rs.)                                           0.14                                         -0.63 
Diluted Earnings per share (In Rs.)                                           0.14                                         -0.63 

The following is a reconciliation of the equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted 
earnings per equity share:

Net profit available to equity holders of the Company used in the basic and diluted earnings per share 
was determined as follows:

The number of shares used in computing basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the year.

The diluted EPS is calculated on the same basis as basic EPS because their were no potential equity 
shares.
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Note 31

(i) Related party name and relationship

Particulars
Jai Sinter Polycon Pvt. Ltd. Director Holds office of Profit
Crystal Packaging Director is Partner
Mrs. Vinod Baid Relative of Director
Mr. Bharat Kumar Baid Key Management Personnel
Miss Shikha Natani Key Management Personnel
Miss Rashmi Agarwal Key Management Personnel
Mr. Vikram Baid Key Management Personnel

(Amount in Lakhs)

Sale of Goods
Crystal Packaging 44.58 8.32
Sale of Machine: Crystal Packaging 7.35
Receiving of Services
Jai Sinter Polycon Pvt. Ltd. 38.01 34.12

Rent
Mrs. Vinod Baid 8.58 8.58
Jai Sinter Polycon Pvt. Ltd. 24 26.50

Managerial Remuneration(As per Companies Act 2013)

Mr. Bharat Kumar Baid 30.01 29.89

Miss Shikha Natani 2.76

Rashmi Agarwal (Including Gratuity) 0.97 3.90

Mr. Vikram Baid 28.55 28.43

Sitting Fee to Directors:

  Shri Pawan Nahata 0.10

Shri Niraj Nahata 0.10

Smt. Anima Bordia 0.06

Outstandings Payable

For Expenses:

 Jai Sinter Polycon Pvt. Ltd. 49.36 43.79

For Remuneration:
  Mr. Bharat Kumar Baid 9.46 21.18
  Miss Shikha Natani 0.23
  Mr. Vikram Baid 10.42 15.49
Amounts Receivable:
  Crystal Packaging 15.39 7.83
(Included in Note 6)

(ii) Disclosure in respect of Material Transactions with Related parties during the year

(iii) Disclosures with respect of Outstanding Balances of Related Parties

Purchases As at 31st 
March, 2021

As at 31st 
March, 2022

Nature of Transactions As at 31st 
March, 2021

As at 31st 
March, 2022

Related Parties

Related Party Transactions

Designation

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24, name of the related party, related party relationship, 
transactions and outstanding balances including commitments where control exits and with whom 
transactions have taken place during reported periods, are reported as under:
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Note 32

•        

•        Interest Rate Risk:

•        Price Risk:

B.   Liquidity Risk
•        

•        

•        

•        

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Bank Deposits

Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifying bank 
deposits accounts in different banks across the country.

Cash Credit Facilities
Cash credits facilities from Bank of Baroda, Park Street Branch, Jaipur together with interest and other charges thereon, is secured by mortgage
of company's land and building together with plant and machinery thereon both present and future and by way of a hypothecation charge over
all movable assets including book debts, stock etc. of the company and secured by personal guarantee of three directors of the company. Cash
credit is payable on demand and carries interest rate @ 7.95% p.a. on monthly rest.

Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company write offs debtors when they fail to make contractual
payment greater than a reasonable limit post due.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit 
risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company 
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It 
considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.

Trade and Other Receivables
Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counter party resulting in financial loss. The maximum exposure to the credit risk 
at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to Rs. 403.12 Lakhs and Rs. 348.35 Lakhs as at March 31, 2022, and March 
31, 2021 respectively. The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The 
management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry. The 
Company monitors its exposure to credit risk on an ongoing basis at various levels. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

Due to the geographical spread and the diversity of the Company's customers, the Company is not subject to any significant concentration of 
credit risks at balance sheet date.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Company's receivables from customers. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks i.e. Market Risk, Liquidity Risk and Credit Risk.

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.

A.    Market risk
Foreign Currency Risk:
There are no currency rate risk on the Company since all the transactions are done in the functional currency (INR) and the Company has not
taken any loans or borrowings from the market in foreign currency.

The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate charges at the end of the reporting period is on the amount of outstanding balance of 
cash credit facilities from Indian Overseas Bank/ Bank of Baroda. The interest rates are linked to 1 year MCLR and are changed at the time of 
annual renewal. The rates will either increase or decrease depending on changes in RBI's and Bank's policies.

The Company faces price risk due to change in price of Raw Materials from time to time. To shield itself from them, all sales contracts and orders 
are variable to changes in prices from time to time. They are based on the price of raw materials at the beginning of each month or weighted 
average price of last 3 months.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding to meet 
obligations when due. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of 
expected cash flows. The Company’s objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash requirements.  

C.    Credit risk
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Note 33 Fair Value Measurement 

(Amount in Lakhs)

Carrying 
Amount 

Fair Value Carrying 
Amount 

Fair Value

Financial Assets designated at 
amortised cost

Trade Receivables 403.12 403.12 348.35 348.35
Cash & Cash Equivalents 1.02 1.02 5.87 5.87
Other Financial Assets 35.47 35.47 40.56 40.56

Carrying 
Amount 

Fair Value Carrying 
Amount 

Fair Value

Financial Assets designated at 
fair value through other 
comprehensive income

Carrying 
Amount 

Fair Value Carrying 
Amount 

Fair Value

Financial Assets designated at 
fair value through profit and 
loss

Carrying 
Amount 

Fair Value Carrying 
Amount 

Fair Value

Financial Liabilities designated 
at amortised cost

Borrowings (Non-Current and 
Current) 357.54 357.54 346.49 346.49
Trade Payables 81.12 81.12 98.89 98.89
Other Financial Liabilities 19.8 19.8 23.63 23.63

Carrying 
Amount 

Fair Value Carrying 
Amount 

Fair Value

Financial Liabilities designated 
at amortised cost at fair value 
through profit and loss

(i) 

•        

•        

•        

(ii)

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity 
instruments, traded debentures and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments 
(including debentures) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting 
period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation 
techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific 
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in 
level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in 
level 3.

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.

The Company's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the 
reporting period.

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial 
instruments.

Particulars 

As at 31st March, 2022

As at 31st March, 2022

As at 31st March, 2022

As at 31st March, 2021As at 31st March, 2022

Particulars 

Particulars 

As at 31st March, 2021

As at 31st March, 2021

Particulars 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, 2021

As at 31st March, 2021As at 31st March, 2022

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, capital creditors, cash and cash equivalents, other bank 
balances, other financial assets, short term borrowings and other financial liabilities are considered to be the same as 
their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

Majorly the security deposits are reedemable on demand and hence the fair values of security deposits are 
approximately equivalent to the carrying amount.
There is no material difference between carrying amount and fair value of non-current borrowings as on March 31, 
2022 and March 31, 2021.

Fair Value Hierarchy

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities
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Note 34

Policy

Process

(Amount in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 

2022
As at 31st March, 

2021
357.54 346.49
437.33 433.12
0.82                            0.80                            Ratio

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Objective

Particulars

Total debt
Total equity

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximize the shareholder 
value. i.e. to provide maximum returns to the shareholders. The Company’s primary objective 
when managing capital is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy 
capital ratios and safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to 
support its business and provide maximum returns to the shareholders. The Company also 
proposes to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. No changes 
were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended March 31, 2022 and 
March 31, 2021.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in 
economic conditions and the rules and regulations framed by the Government under whose 
control the Company operates.

The Company manage its capital by maintaining sound/optimal capital structure  financial 
ratios, such as net debt-to-equity ratio on a monthly basis and implements capital structure 
improvement plan when necessary. Debt-to-equity ratio as of March 31, 2022, and March 31, 
2021 is as follows:
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Note 35 ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY
The carrying amounts of assets Pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at 31st 
March, 2022 

 As at 31st 
March, 2021 

Current Assets
Financial Assets
Floating Charge
Cash & Cash Equivalents -                       -                       
Receivables 403.12 348.35
Fixed Deposit lien by bank against term 
loan
Short Term Loans & advances
Non Financial Assets
Floating Charge
Inventories 192.09 179.32
Other Current Assets

Total Current assets Pledged as security 595.21                527.67                

Non Current Assets
First Charge
Land 13.83 13.83
Building 32.81 36.21
Furniture, fittings and equipment 0.37 0.42
Plant and Machinary including Store & 
Spares 155.21 181.42
Fixed Deposit lien by bank against term 
loan 
Others 90.61 109.65

Total non-current assets Pledged as 
security 292.83 341.53
Total assets Pledged as security 888.04                869.20                

Note 36

Note 37

Cash credits facilities from Bank of Baroda, Park Street Branch, Jaipur together with interest 
and other charges thereon, is secured by mortgage of company's land and building together 
with plant and machinery thereon both present and future and by way of a hypothecation 
charge over all movable assets including book debts, stock etc. of the company and secured by 
personal guarantee of three directors of the company. Cash credit is payable on demand and 
carries interest rate @ 7.95%% p.a. on monthly rest.

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise has issued an office memorandum dated 
26.08.2008, which recommends that Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their 
correspondence with its customers, the entrepreneur's memorandum number as allocated after 
filing of memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such 
enterprises as on 31.03.2022 and 31.03.2021 has been made in the financial statements based 
on the information provided by the management. Based on the information currently available 
with the company, there are no dues payable to Micro and Small Suppliers as defined in the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

Previous year's figure have been regrouped/ reclassified / rounded off  wherever necessary to 
correspond with the current year's classification/ disclosure.

Disclosure required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006
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NOTE  38  RATIOS
Ratio Analysis

Particulars Numerator Denominator March 31, 2022 March 31, 
2021

% change Reason for 
change more 
than 25%

Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.30 1.19 8.82                          -   

Debt-equity ratio Total Non- Current
Liabilities

Shareholder’s Equity 0.06 0.08 -18.18

Debt service coverage ratio Earnings for debt
service = Net profit
before taxes + Non-
cash operating
expenses+INTEREST

Debt service =
Interest & Lease
Payments +
Principal 
Repayments

2.08 0.93 123.66  See Note below 
the Ratio 

Return on equity ratio Net Profits after taxes –
Preference Dividend

Average 
Shareholder’s Equity

0.01 -0.04 -121.64  See Note below 
the Ratio 

Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 5.06 3.33 51.89  See Note below 
the Ratio 

Trade receivables turnover ratio Revenue from Operation Closing Trade
Receivable

4.06 3.26 24.78                          -   

Trade payable turnover ratio Total Purchases Average Trade
Payables

10.49 6.26 67.54  See Note below 
the Ratio 

Net capital turnover ratio Revenue from Operation Working capital =
Current assets –
Current liabilities

10.72 12.69 -15.52

Net profit ratio Net Profit after tax Revenue from
operations.

0.00276 -0.01669 -116.52  See Note below 
the Ratio 

Return on capital employed Earnings before interest
and taxes

Capital Employed =
Tangible Net Worth
+ Total Debt +
Deferred Tax
Liability

0.05602 -0.00526 -1164.07  See Note below 
the Ratio 

Retun on investment Earnings before interest
and taxes

Closing Total Assets 0.02974 0.00016 18599.13  See Note below 
the Ratio 

 Current Ratio = Current Assets divided by Current Liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current Assets 622.80                     566.56
Current Liabilities 480.45                     475.62
Ratio 1.30 1.19
% Change from previous period/year 8.82

 

 Debt Equity ratio = Total debt divided by Total equity where total debt refers to sum of current & non current borrowings

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Total debts 28.37                       34.34                  
Total equity 437.33                     433.12                
Ratio 0.06 0.08
% Change from previous period/year -18.18% -

Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings available for debt services divided by Total interest and principal repayments

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Profit before tax 2.67                         (22.19)                 
Add: Non cash operating expenses -                          -                      
- Depreciation and amortizations 61.98                       68.61                  
- Finance cost 25.47                       22.34                  
Earnings available for debt services 90.12                       68.76                  
Interest cost on borrowings 25.47                       22.34                  
Principal repayments 17.83                       51.55                  
Total Interest and principal repayments 43.30                       73.89                  
Ratio 2.08 0.93
% Change from previous period/year 123.66%

Reason for change more than 25%

Following ratio are being disclosed:

The company had incurred losses in the year ending 31 March 2021 resulting from lockdowns and drop in sales due to COVID and 
Additional expenses incurred for acommodation and welfare of its employees. The company is back in profit during the year ended 31st 
March 2022.
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Return on Equity Ratio / Return on Investment Ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Equity

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Net profit after tax 4.21                         (19.27)                 
Total equity 437.33                     433.12                
Ratio                          0.01                    (0.04)
Change in basis points (bps) from previous period / year 0.05
% Change from previous period/year -12164%

Reason for change more than 25%

 Inventory Turnover Ratio = Cost of materials consumed divided by closing inventory

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cost of material consumed/cost of goods sold 938.74                     610.95                
Average inventory 185.71                     183.58                
Inventory turnover Ratio 5.06 3.33
% Change from previous period/year 51.89%

Reason for change more than 25%

Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Credit Sales divided by Closing trade receivables

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Revenue from operation 1,526.60                  1,154.42             
Average Trade Receivables 375.74                     354.54                
Ratio 4.06 3.26
% Change from previous period/year 24.78%

 Trade payables turnover ratio = Credit purchases divided by closing trade payables

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Credit purchases 940.56                     603.08                
Average Trade Payables 89.64                       96.30                  
Ratio 10.49 6.26
% Change from previous period/year 67.54%

Reason for change more than 25%

Net capital Turnover Ratio = Sales divided by Net Working capital whereas net working capital= current assets - current liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Revenue from operations 1,526.60                  1,154.42             
Net working capital (CA-CL) 142.35                     90.94                  
Ratio                        10.72                    12.69 
% Change from previous period/year -15.52%

Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Sales we had written of disputed liabilities as well as increases sales during the year

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Net profit after tax 4.21                         (19.27)                 
Sales ( Revenue from operations) 1,526.60                  1,154.42             
Ratio 0.28% -1.67%
Change in basis points (bps) from previous period / year 194.50
% Change from previous period/year -116.52%

Reason for change more than 25%

Return on Capital employed (pre cash)=Earnings before interest and taxes(EBIT) divided by Capital Employed(pre cash)

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Profit before tax (A) 2.67                         (22.19)                 
Finance cost (B) 25.47                       22.34                  
Other Income (C ) 2.11                         2.58                    

The company had incurred losses in the year ending 31 March 2021 resulting from lockdowns and drop in sales due to COVID and 
Additional expenses incurred for acommodation and welfare of its employees. The company is back in profit during the year ended 31st 
March 2022.

The company had improved turnover and was able to manage the inventory better.

The company was able to manage the Purchases better due to change in purchases as a result of imporvement in sales.

The profitability improved due to increase on in sales and sharp reduction in COVID related impacts on working of the company
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EBIT (D) = (A) + (B) - (C ) 26.03                       (2.43)                   
Total Assets (E) 946.15                     943.08                
Current Liabilities (F) 480.45                     475.62                
Current Investments (G) -                          -                      
Cash and Cash equivalents (H) 1.02                         5.87                    
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (I) -                          -                      
Capital Employed (Pre Cash) (J)=(E)-(F)-(G)-(H)-(I) 464.68                     461.59                
Ratio (D) / (J) 0.0560 -0.0053
% Change from previous period/year 6.13%

 

Retun on investment

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Earnings before Interest and tax 28.14                       0.15                    
Closing total assets 946.15                     943.08                
Ratio                          0.03                  0.0002 
Change in basis points (bps) from previous period / year 295.83
% Change from previous period/year 18599.13%

Reason for change more than 25%

The profitability improved due to increase on in sales and sharp reduction in COVID related impacts on working of the company.

Note 39

a.

b.

d.

j. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

a. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 
not provided for.
b. Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid.
c.  Or any other commitments.
Therefore, no provision for any contingent liability has been provided.   

Additional Regulatory Information Required by Schedule III of Compaines Act 2013

Details of Benami property: No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the 
Group for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 
(45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

Balances of sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors and Loans and Advances are subject to 
confirmation and reconciliation by the parties and adjustment, if any ,required on 
reconciliation will be done in the year in which the same is reconciled. Further, management 
does not expect any material  difference in the Financial statements for the year.

i) Company has not advanced or loan or invested funds ( either borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other source or kind of funds) to any other persons or entity (ies), including 
foreign entities ( intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the company ( ultimate Beneficiaries) or provided any guarantee, security or the 
like to or on behalf of the ultimate Beneficiaries. 

ii) Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity (ies), including foreign 
entities (Funding Part) with the understanding that the company shall directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provided any guarantee, security or the like to 
or on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries.

c.

Company as well as its Directors does not appear in the RBI list of defaulters/ RBI list of 
willful defaulters during the current year.

e.

The Company does not have any un-recorded or un-disclosed income during the 
year, in which assessments of tax has been conducted under the Income Tax Act, 
1961

f.

Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the 
financial year under review as such no other disclosure with regard to crypto currency 
is required to be given.

g.

The provisions of section 135 of Companies Act 2013, "Corporate Social Responsibility" 
are not applicable on Company.

h.

In the opinion of the management, Company has not undertaken any transactions 
with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 
of  Companies Act, 1956.

i.

In the opinion of the Board there are no other contingent liabilities & Commitments 
during the year in terms of:-

INCOME IN FOREIGN CURRENCY 
 

Nature of Transactions 
As at 31-03-

2022 
As at 31-03-

2021 

      FOB Value of Exports NIL  NIL 

     Other Income  NIL  NIL 
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b. Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid.
c.  Or any other commitments.
Therefore, no provision for any contingent liability has been provided.   

Additional Regulatory Information Required by Schedule III of Compaines Act 2013

Details of Benami property: No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the 
Group for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 
(45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.
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confirmation and reconciliation by the parties and adjustment, if any ,required on 
reconciliation will be done in the year in which the same is reconciled. Further, management 
does not expect any material  difference in the Financial statements for the year.

i) Company has not advanced or loan or invested funds ( either borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other source or kind of funds) to any other persons or entity (ies), including 
foreign entities ( intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the company ( ultimate Beneficiaries) or provided any guarantee, security or the 
like to or on behalf of the ultimate Beneficiaries. 

ii) Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity (ies), including foreign 
entities (Funding Part) with the understanding that the company shall directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provided any guarantee, security or the like to 
or on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries.

c.

Company as well as its Directors does not appear in the RBI list of defaulters/ RBI list of 
willful defaulters during the current year.

e.

The Company does not have any un-recorded or un-disclosed income during the 
year, in which assessments of tax has been conducted under the Income Tax Act, 
1961

f.

Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the 
financial year under review as such no other disclosure with regard to crypto currency 
is required to be given.

g.

The provisions of section 135 of Companies Act 2013, "Corporate Social Responsibility" 
are not applicable on Company.

h.

In the opinion of the management, Company has not undertaken any transactions 
with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 
of  Companies Act, 1956.

i.

In the opinion of the Board there are no other contingent liabilities & Commitments 
during the year in terms of:-

INCOME IN FOREIGN CURRENCY 
 

Nature of Transactions 
As at 31-03-

2022 
As at 31-03-

2021 

      FOB Value of Exports NIL  NIL 

     Other Income  NIL  NIL 

 

p.

q.

s.

Note 40

For Tambi Ashok & Associates                     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.: 005301C

CA Ashok Kumar Tambi          Bharat Kumar Baid Vikram Baid Shikha Natani
Partner                                Managing Director Executive 

Dircetor and 
CFO

Company 
Secretary & 
Compliance 

Officer

Membership No.: 074100           DIN: 00212506
DIN: 00217347 Membership 

No.:45901

Place : Jaipur
Date : 30.05.2022

Based on the nature of products/activities of the Company and the normal time between 
acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has 
determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of the assets and 
liabilities as current and non-current.

The other additional disclosures and information (not specifically disclosed) as required by 
Schedule III are either Nil or Not Applicable.

Note No 1 to 39  form integral part of the accounts and are duly aunthencated 
In terms of our report attached.  

Loans or advances to specified persons:The Group has not granted any loans or advances in 
the nature ofloans to promoters, directors, KMPs or the related parties (as defined under 
Companies Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with any other person

r.

The borrowings obtained by the Company have been utilised for the purpose for 
which the same was obtained.

n.

No scheme of arrangement has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms 
of Sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013, hence, this is not applicable.

o.

Company does not have any subsidiary company hence provisions prescribed in 
clause (87) of section 2 of Companies Act 2013, read with Companies (Restriction on 
number of Layers) Rules 2017, are not applicable to company.

l.

The company have no charges pending with Registrar of Companies either for 
registration or for satisfaction towards any guarantee given /Credit facilities enjoyed by 
company/others.

m.

Utilization of Borrowings Availed from Banks and Financial Institutions:

Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: As the Group has chosen 
cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (Including Right-of-Use assets) and 
Intangible Assets, the question of revaluation does not arise.

In the opinion of the directors, current assets have a value on realisation in the ordinary 
course of business at least equal to the at where they are stated in books and all 
known liabilities have been provided in the accounts.

k.
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